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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I apologize for

          3  being a little late this morning, the traffic around

          4  City Hall is not the easiest, so I guess I will have

          5  to start a little earlier.

          6                 I am Council Member Archie Spigner, I

          7  chair the Committee on Housing and Buildings. Today

          8  the Committee will examine two bills, Intro. Nos

          9  96-A and 98-A which deal with creating additional

         10  requirements for demolition and scaffolding workers.

         11                 Both bills arise out of our concerns

         12  about construction safety. The good news is that New

         13  York is currently in a period when a substantial

         14  amount of work is being done to build and renovate

         15  our buildings. This both reflects and creates a good

         16  economy.

         17                 Additionally, Local Law 11 of 1998,

         18  expanded the requirements of Local Law 10 of 1980 to

         19  include all exterior walls of buildings six stories

         20  or taller, not just the walls of abutting sidewalks

         21  and pedestrian walkways.

         22                 This has created a significant amount

         23  of construction activity that requires scaffolds,

         24  and sidewalk sheds.

         25                 This heavy volume of work requires
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          2  individuals who have not traditionally done

          3  construction in our city and raises concerns about

          4  their training and safety.

          5                 The problems that can be caused by

          6  the extensive use of inadequately trained workers

          7  has been demonstrated by the number of accidents

          8  that have occurred recently on scaffolds and during

          9  demolition.

         10                 Intro. No. 98-A would require all

         11  persons who work on, or, erect scaffolds on the

         12  outside of buildings to receive a certificate of

         13  fitness from the Department of Buildings.

         14                 The bill provides for two different

         15  types of certificates, with specific types of

         16  training for each, an "erector" certificate and a

         17  "user" certificate.

         18                 Intro. No. 96-A creates a demolition

         19  contractor license and requires that a demolition

         20  contractor supervise all demolition.

         21                 The Committee is not expected to vote

         22  today. As our first witness, I call upon Richard

         23  Visconti, Acting Commissioner of the Department of

         24  Buildings.

         25                 Commissioner Visconti, take a seat,
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          2  please, and everyone who is with you who you want to

          3  accompany you in this presentation, we would be

          4  happy to have them join you as well.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Good

          6  morning, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 With me this morning to my right is

          8  Deputy Commissioner Steesh Babar (phonetically

          9  spelled) for Technical Affairs at the Department,

         10  and to my left, Mr. Leo Lee, Director of Cranes and

         11  Derricks and Hoisting and Rigging.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What was that

         13  title?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

         15  Director of the Cranes and Derricks and Hoisting and

         16  Rigging Division of the Department.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Cranes,

         18  Derricks, Hoisting and Rigging Division.

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Right.

         20                 Good morning, Chairman Spigner, and

         21  members of the Housing and Buildings Committee. My

         22  name is Richard Visconti, and I am the Acting

         23  Commissioner of the Department of Buildings.

         24                 I am here to testify regarding Intro.

         25  96-A and Intro. 98-A respectively. I will begin with
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          2  Intro. 96-A.

          3                 The Department of Buildings shares

          4  the Council's desire to improve safety during the

          5  construction operation. We believe that protecting

          6  public safety is paramount and that the government

          7  should pass the most effective and comprehensive

          8  measure available to ensure this. We support the

          9  intention of the proposal being considered to today

         10  to licensed demolitions, who do not support the

         11  substance of proposed Intro. 96-A.

         12                 The best way to achieve the control

         13  that the Council seeks would be to enact Intro. 352,

         14  the bill introduced by the Mayor last year, which

         15  called for the licensing of general contractors and

         16  construction managers.

         17                 This bill was referred to the Finance

         18  Committee, which is yet to hold a hearing.

         19                 Proposed Intro. 96-A distinguishes

         20  between the demolition process and other

         21  construction work by requiring licensing only for

         22  demolition work.

         23                 In the majority of cases demolition

         24  work occurs simultaneously with other construction

         25  activity that is not covered by the licensing scheme
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          2  in Intro. 96-A.

          3                 The Department agrees with the

          4  Council, the demolition work performed by workers

          5  who are not competent can cause serious problems,

          6  but so can other construction operations when

          7  improperly performed.

          8                 A number of incidents have resulted

          9  from the excavation process being performed

         10  improperly. Two examples come to mind: The bulges

         11  and cracks that appeared on the south wall of 182

         12  Avenue B in Manhattan on March 4th, 1998, and the

         13  injury of a worker who was trapped under a wall of

         14  dirt at a construction site at 41-26 68th Street in

         15  Queens on August 16th, 1999.

         16                 In the first example, although there

         17  was no collapse, 15 apartments and two stores were

         18  evacuated, while the south wall of the building was

         19  stabilized. This situation was a by-product of the

         20  excavation work at the construction site next door.

         21                 In the second example, the wall

         22  collapsed during the site excavation due to

         23  inadequate sheeting, shoring and bracing. Neither

         24  situation was the result of a demolition and there

         25  was, and is, no mechanism to assure the competency
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          2  of the contractors who executed these projects.

          3                 The bill before us today also falls

          4  short because it only addresses those limited

          5  situations where a discrete demolition permit is

          6  issued. However, most demolition work is performed

          7  without a separate demolition permit, as part of an

          8  alteration job.

          9                 In Fiscal Year '99, the Department of

         10  Buildings issued 2,339 fewer demolition permits, as

         11  compared to 60,654 alteration permits. Many of these

         12  alteration jobs involve substantial demolition work.

         13                 For example, an addition to a

         14  one-family house may involve a demolition of some

         15  exterior wall and the roof. A separate demolition

         16  permit is not issued. Thus, this job would not be

         17  covered by the bill.

         18                 The Mayor's bill, Intro. 352, would

         19  require the licensing of those general contractors

         20  and construction managers engaged in the demolition

         21  activity, as well as the attendant construction

         22  project.

         23                 It would provide the citizens of the

         24  City with protection from unqualified and

         25  incompetent contractors that doesn't exist now.
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          2                 Also, in a recent study by Building

          3  Department staff, it was determined that of the 113

          4  reported building collapses during construction

          5  operations from October 1993 through June 1998, only

          6  three sites had individual permits for demolition,

          7  the majority of the work was performed in the

          8  context of an alteration.

          9                 Licensing general contractors and

         10  construction managers, not demolition contractors,

         11  would give the Department the ability to hold

         12  someone who is a primary component of the

         13  construction process responsible for not taking the

         14  appropriate precaution.

         15                 Another area where proposed Intro.

         16  96-A falls short, is that it does not provide for a

         17  defined enforcement mechanism or penalties for those

         18  who perform demolition work without a license.

         19                 Most Department of Building

         20  violations are adjudicated at the Environmental

         21  Control Board and adjudication at ECB must be set

         22  forth in any new law if effective enforcement is

         23  desired.

         24                 In addition, the relationship between

         25  the licensed demolition contract and the registered
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          2  demolition company is unclear.

          3                 Although this proposal requires the

          4  registration of demolition companies, there does not

          5  appear to be a mechanism to penalizing the

          6  demolition companies themselves. And although the

          7  companies must be registered, the bill does not

          8  provide for background checks or any basis for the

          9  denial of a company's registration or renewal.

         10                 A more comprehensive approach than

         11  Proposed Intro. 96-A should be taken that would

         12  address demolition contractors as a part of the

         13  overall construction contracting community.

         14                 Demolition contractors are often

         15  subcontractors on a project, and thus are vulnerable

         16  to the economic and time pressures imposed by those

         17  in control of the construction process, the general

         18  contractor and the construction manager.

         19                 Proposed Intro. 96-A would create a

         20  subcontractor's license without imposing any

         21  responsibility on the general contractors

         22  construction managers who oversee and coordinate the

         23  construction process. The Department believes that

         24  the licensing of general contractors and

         25  construction managers, instead of just demolition
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          2  contractors, would dramatically enhance our overall

          3  enforcement capability.

          4                 Presently there is not mechanism to

          5  truly penalize an errant general contractor or a

          6  construction manager.

          7                 The general contractor or

          8  construction manager is typically responsible for

          9  obtaining the construction permits. The Department

         10  can issue violations but there is no ability to

         11  revoke to suspend a license if a general contractor

         12  or construction manager doesn't pay the fines or

         13  obtain the proper permit before starting work.

         14                 The Mayor's bill, Intro. 352, with

         15  its broader scope, will afford the public the

         16  greater level of protection that it deserves.

         17                 With regard to Intro. 96-A, while we

         18  share the Council concern pertaining to the safety

         19  of the public and employees with regard to

         20  scaffolds, we do not support the passage of this

         21  bill.

         22                 As a result of the City's favorable

         23  economic climate, we are in the midst of a

         24  construction boom. More scaffolding is being

         25  utilized throughout the City, as old structures are
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          2  rehabilitated and new ones are constructed.

          3                 Also, the expanded inspection and

          4  repair requirements for facade, as mandated by Local

          5  Law 11 of '98 necessitates the use of additional

          6  suspended scaffolds.

          7                 Proposed Intro. 96-A would require

          8  the training of individuals that work on scaffolds

          9  and sidewalk sheds. The Department of Buildings is

         10  in favor of such training. We have drafted rules

         11  that we believe are preferable to proposed Intro.

         12  96-A, since they would ensure that the

         13  responsibility for safety rests squarely on the

         14  shoulders of a licensed rigger or the general

         15  contractor, rather than the individual employee.

         16                 There are two basic types of

         17  scaffolds, suspended and fixed.

         18                 Suspended scaffolds hang from ropes

         19  or cables along the sides of buildings. By code, the

         20  erection, suspension and use of suspended scaffolds

         21  must be done under the supervision of a rigger who

         22  is licensed by the Department of Buildings.

         23                 The licensed rigger must meet minimum

         24  requirements and pass an examination administered by

         25  the City.
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          2                 They are required to supervise all

          3  aspects of the rigging operations and all work

          4  undertaken while on a suspended scaffold.

          5                 Standards for the erection of fixed

          6  scaffolds are governed by the Building Code. In

          7  addition, detailed rules governing the use of fixed

          8  scaffolds have been issued by the federal

          9  Occupational Safety and Health Administration, OSHA.

         10  However, there is currently no licensing requirement

         11  for the contractor who erects the fixed scaffold.

         12                 For licensed riggers, the training

         13  requirement set forth in Intro. 98-A would be

         14  redundant because they have already demonstrated

         15  their qualifications, in order to obtain their

         16  license. The workers they supervise should, however,

         17  receive proper training. In this regard, we agree

         18  with the intent of Intro. 98-A, but differ as to the

         19  role to be played by the Department of Buildings.

         20                 The Department has drafted rules, in

         21  addition to specifying the supervisory requirements

         22  for licensees, would improve training requirements

         23  for all individuals who work or operate on a

         24  suspended scaffold.

         25                 While the Department would approve
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          2  the training course to be administered, the licensed

          3  rigger would be responsible for issuing the

          4  certificate of fitness and ensuring each individual

          5  workers compliance with the training requirements.

          6                 In the Department scheme, the

          7  licensee bears primary responsibility for

          8  implementing and monitoring the training received by

          9  each individual worker, consistent with the code's

         10  obligation that the licensee supervise the work.

         11                 Intro. 98-A would give the Department

         12  primary responsibility for this task, forcing us to

         13  seek out and penalize workers individually in a

         14  manner that would, we believe undermine the licensed

         15  rigger's statutory obligations.

         16                 Since the Department cannot be

         17  constantly monitoring work sites, our ability to

         18  enforce would be greatly inferior to the ability of

         19  a licensed rigger. If the licensee is kept fully

         20  responsible for his or her workers training, we

         21  believe that fewer unqualified workers will ever

         22  climb on to a suspended scaffold since the licensee

         23  would be risking his or her license and livelihood.

         24                 While the Building Code governs how a

         25  fixed scaffold is to be erected, there is no license

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  requirement for contractors who erect fixed

          3  scaffolds and sidewalk sheds.

          4                 This is one of the reasons we

          5  strongly believe that the Mayor's proposed Intro.

          6  352 requiring general contractors and construction

          7  managers to be licensed is necessary.

          8                 Issues pertaining to working on fixed

          9  scaffolds are covered by the federal OSHA rules,

         10  which are extensive. These rules set forth safety

         11  obligations to be performed by a competent person,

         12  which is defined as one who is capable of

         13  identifying existing and predictable hazards in the

         14  surroundings for working conditions which are

         15  unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to employees, and

         16  who has authorization to take prompt, corrective

         17  measures to eliminate them.

         18                 According to OSHA regulations, the

         19  competent person must inspect all scaffold

         20  components for visible defects before each work

         21  shift and after any incident affecting the scaffold,

         22  direct the erection, moving, dismantling or

         23  alteration of a scaffold and train each employee

         24  regarding the hazard associated with this specific

         25  type of work and determine the feasibility and
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          2  safety providing fall protection for employees

          3  erecting or dismantling supported scaffolds.

          4                 Furthermore, the OSHA regulations

          5  provide that training be provided to each employee

          6  who performs work while on a scaffold by a qualified

          7  person knowledgeable regarding scaffold hazards.

          8                 The areas of training are spelled out

          9  in detail in OSHA's rules, rendering the

         10  requirements in Intro. 98 somewhat redundant.

         11                 With regard to erecting sidewalk

         12  sheds, the staff of the Department is unaware of any

         13  problems that would lead to a requirement for such

         14  workers to have a certificate of fitness. We have

         15  enacted rules specifying the rules specifying

         16  materials to be used for heavy duty and light duty

         17  sheds, thus ensuring proper construction. We have no

         18  anecdotal information suggesting that there is a

         19  problem of any significance with workers who erect

         20  sidewalk sheds.

         21                 Again, licensing the general

         22  contractors or construction managers who oversee the

         23  overall construction process, including the erection

         24  of the shed would address concerns about

         25  responsibility or worker training and safety.
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          2                 In summation, the Department believes

          3  that the mutual concerns of the Council and the

          4  Administration would best be served by the rigger

          5  rules that we are currently promulgating by the

          6  industry's adherence to existing OSHA requirements

          7  and by the passage of the Mayor's proposal to

          8  license general contractors.

          9                 I would be happy to answer any

         10  questions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I want to thank

         12  you for your rather comprehensive analysis of 96-A

         13  and 98-A, which doesn't leave very much need to ask

         14  questions because I think you have made your

         15  position quite clear, with one or two minor

         16  reservations, you don't like either of these bills.

         17                 Well, I was trying to listen as

         18  closely as I could. If we could just go back to page

         19  six, with regard to erecting sidewalk sheds, you are

         20  unaware of any problems. So, you have no experience

         21  or record or information that accidents have

         22  occurred, workers have been hurt, or the public is

         23  at risk? You have no information or records

         24  indicating the extent of a problem of that regard?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: The
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          2  only problem, there are two problems that we have

          3  with scaffold sheds, one which is totally out of our

          4  control, which is motor vehicles crashing into

          5  sidewalk sheds.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Or people

          7  crashing into them.

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

          9  or people who inadvertently walk into the supporting

         10  structure.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The one problem

         12  that we did have, and we addressed was storage of

         13  material on sidewalk sheds. The Building Code

         14  provides for two types of sheds, a light duty shed,

         15  which is designed to support 150 pound per square

         16  foot load, and a heavy duty shed, which supports a

         17  load of 300 pounds of square foot and may be used

         18  for the storage of materials.

         19                 And we did have a collapse at one

         20  site in Manhattan in which material was stored and

         21  it was not a heavy duty shed. But we addressed that

         22  issue by putting out a new policy with regard to the

         23  application process for sidewalk sheds in which the

         24  applicant must declare whether it is a light duty

         25  shed or a heavy duty shed, and that the standard
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          2  sidewalk shed sign, which includes the name of the

          3  company which erected the shed and the permit

          4  number, that the sign include a statement as to

          5  whether it is a heavy duty shed. If it is not, that

          6  it include on that sign a statement that no storage

          7  is permitted, to alert a contractor who perhaps

          8  intends to do some facade work and may want to store

          9  some of the materials that they are using in that

         10  repair on that shed, that it is a warning sign to

         11  that following contractor that this shed was not

         12  designed for the storage of materials.

         13                 So I think we have addressed the

         14  recent concerns that have developed with sheds. We

         15  are not aware of any accidents that have occurred

         16  with workers in the process of erecting sheds, and

         17  as I said --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Other than

         19  automobiles.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: The

         21  automobiles hitting a sidewalk shed.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We have

         23  information that accidents are widespread,

         24  inexperienced, untrained workers, I mean we didn't

         25  just come up with this concept out of thin air,
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          2  there had to be some basis for us, including that we

          3  at least ought to discuss the need for rules and

          4  regulations or additional training or safety

          5  measures as it relates to sidewalks in the other

          6  bill that we are discussing this morning.

          7                 So, before the morning is out, I

          8  believe that some of the proponents of this measure

          9  are here, so if you are not able to stay, perhaps

         10  you can assign the hoist --

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes, my

         12  staff will remain.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: -- Training, the

         14  one who is in charge of hoists, cranes and derricks

         15  to stick around and perhaps respond.

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: But I

         17  think, you know, when we talk about the sidewalk

         18  sheds, sidewalk sheds are there for the protection

         19  of the public and serve a different function than

         20  scaffolding which is used in the course of the same

         21  work.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Then, Mr. Lee is

         23  his name?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Mr. Lee

         25  will remain here.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: He is not in

          3  charge of sidewalk sheds then?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No.

          5  Sidewalk sheds are a part of the safety program with

          6  any construction project in which the Building Code

          7  requires the erection of a sidewalk shed to protect

          8  the public.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, inspection

         10  of sidewalk sheds is complaint-driven, right? You

         11  don't go around because there is a large number of

         12  sidewalk sheds, so let me go in and inspect and test

         13  and see --

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Oh, it

         15  is both complaint-driven and we conduct sweeps, and

         16  with our emergency squad, which is our after hour

         17  squad, we have a continuing program of inspecting

         18  sidewalk sheds to determine whether the shed has

         19  been removed, because we do have an issue of certain

         20  sidewalk sheds in certain communities staying up for

         21  extended periods of time. So, our task force is out

         22  there to assure that sheds come down and there is no

         23  safety issue, to see that the permits are up to

         24  date, and to, on an ongoing basis, review the safety

         25  of the sidewalk sheds that are erected.
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          2                 So, we are doing this on a continuing

          3  basis and have probably, in the past year, inspected

          4  probably over 400 sidewalk sheds.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          6  Michels, and we are joined also by Council Member

          7  Malave-Dilan.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I don't

          9  pretend to be an expert on this subject. I think you

         10  have agreed that there is a need for better

         11  protection on people that do demolition as well as

         12  doing the rigging and taking down of these sidewalk

         13  sheds. So the only issue before us really, which is

         14  a better bill, which does the job better, which

         15  protects the public to a greater extent. And you

         16  seem to take a position that the Mayor's bill is

         17  better and as far as the demolition licensing is

         18  concerned.

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I think

         20  it covers the entire spectrum of the construction

         21  process.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I understand

         23  that. As far as the sheds are concerned, you believe

         24  that your rules or regulations are enough, and there

         25  is therefore no need for any further legislation; is
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          2  that correct?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: For

          4  sidewalk sheds.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: For sidewalk

          6  sheds, I understand that.

          7                 Now, on these rules and regulations

          8  that you talked about, have they been published?

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We have

         10  published them, there will be a public hearing on

         11  our rules on the 14th of October.

         12                 One of the things that I did, four

         13  months ago I became the Acting Commissioner of the

         14  Department, and this was a concern of mine, the

         15  safety of individuals who are working on the

         16  scaffolds.

         17                 So I directed my staff to develop

         18  these rules and to move as quickly as possible in

         19  the rule-making process, and I think they have done

         20  an outstanding job within a period of four months of

         21  meeting with the industry, getting a consensus on

         22  what is the process that will work and moving to a

         23  public hearing as quickly as we can.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: There has

         25  been no presentation or consultation with the
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          2  Council with respect to those rules and regulations?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well, I

          4  have shared a copy of the rules with the Committee

          5  --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Has there

          7  been a give and take with the Committee and the

          8  staff of the Committee with respect to these rules

          9  and regulations? To your knowledge, have they come

         10  back to you as far as any improvements or criticisms

         11  of these rules and regulations?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Not

         13  yet. But the public hearing process that we go

         14  through in making any rule captures both the private

         15  sector comments and any comments that the Council

         16  has.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: My point

         18  being, you are fully aware of the fact that we have

         19  legislation that we are intending to have hearings

         20  on, and you have your own rules and regulations you

         21  are coming along and proposing, did they come, were

         22  these rules proposed before of after the

         23  introduction of this legislation?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: They

         25  were being developed before this legislation.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay. What

          3  does that mean? It was a figment of somebody's

          4  imagination or something in paper?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: My role

          6  in the Department before being the Acting

          7  Commissioner was the Deputy Commissioner, and one of

          8  the things that I look at always is what rule, what

          9  procedures need to be developed from a public safety

         10  point of view. So, when we saw an increase in

         11  accidents, and incidents, and in concert with the

         12  passage of Local Law 11, the expansion of the facade

         13  inspection, we believed it was time to be proactive

         14  with regard to safety on scaffolds. So, we began

         15  discussions with the industry in the latter part of

         16  last year to start this process of developing our

         17  rules so that we would have something in place

         18  parallel with the increase in work that we respected

         19  with regard to Local Law 11.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Commissioner,

         21  what I am trying to find out is whether or not --

         22  have you scheduled a hearing yet for --

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: October

         24  14th we have a hearing scheduled.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And I want to
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          2  know whether or not it is a reaction to the fact

          3  that the Council is moving forth on these bills; is

          4  that the reason you are doing it?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No, I

          6  --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It seems to

          8  me we had a similar colloquy at a hearing that we

          9  had in March of '98 with respect to similar

         10  legislation where at that time it was promised there

         11  would be some rules and regulations which never came

         12  about. So, I don't understand what is happening

         13  here. It seems that the Council is telling us that a

         14  promise was made back in March of '98 that we have

         15  rules and regulations, and nothing ever happened

         16  with them, and that we are going to come to a

         17  situation where we might say, I am not saying we are

         18  going to say this, I am just saying for the purposes

         19  of our testimony, that okay, we want to see your

         20  rules and regulations, we set this aside and then

         21  again nothing happens. I don't know why nothing

         22  happened in March of '98 and we don't want to be

         23  left holding the bag, because we know what goes on

         24  here in Albany, that the Administration sometimes

         25  comes and says oh we are going to act on this, we
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          2  are going to act on this, and then they don't act on

          3  it and we are bypassed on it.

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well, I

          5  think the Department was acting on it, it takes time

          6  to develop rules --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Since March

          8  of '98? I mean, we are almost to the Year 2000 now

          9  and we have people getting injured and we have

         10  problems here, we want to protect the public, and it

         11  seems to me that the --

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well, I

         13  can only speak to what I am doing.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I understand

         15  that, but I want to put this in perspective,

         16  historical perspective. In two years there won't be

         17  too much historical perspective.

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We are

         19  moving as quickly as we can.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What happened

         21  in March of '98, how come we didn't move as quickly

         22  then?

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: The

         24  process is one of consulting with the industry, it

         25  is drafting the rules, it is coming up with
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          2  something that is workable, and dealt not only with

          3  the issue of the safety of the workers, but also

          4  deals with the supervisory responsibilities of the

          5  rigger, which was not spelled out clearly in the

          6  code, rules deal with establishing a standard for

          7  those supervisory requirements. So, we have gone

          8  beyond worker safety --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I understand

         10  that.

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Also

         12  pinning down the licensed rigger to his or her --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So you are

         14  putting a lot of responsibility on the rigger?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Because

         16  they are licensed by the Department and they have

         17  the overall responsibility for the safety and the

         18  operation.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Which would

         20  put more of a burden on the agency, the rules as are

         21  being proposed or this piece of legislation?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I think

         23  this piece of legislation, because we are going to

         24  have to enforce against individual workers. We will

         25  have to issue violations to each of those
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          2  individuals who don't have the training, and we have

          3  taken, you know, the contractor and the licensed

          4  rigger out of the loop. And there is going to be

          5  great pressure with the individual worker who may be

          6  an individual who is an immigrant to this country,

          7  trying to better his or her life, you know, raise a

          8  family and it will be great pressures for that

          9  individual to get on the scaffold.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Hopefully

         11  they will get on the scaffold with better training,

         12  with more training.

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: But we

         14  are leaving --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Because we

         16  want workers to be trained.

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Right.

         18  But we are leaving the licensee out of the

         19  enforcement loop --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So, if we did

         21  the same thing, if we did the same thing this

         22  legislation calls for, put the licensee into the

         23  enforcement loop --

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: That's

         25  right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Would you go

          3  along with this legislation?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I would

          5  be happier with it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I just don't

          7  want this to be in a situation where the agency

          8  opposed it because they just don't want to do more

          9  work on it.

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We

         11  would be very happy to sit down --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Did you hear

         13  what I just said?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Very often we

         16  have agencies come before us and you are putting too

         17  much of a burden on them - it is going to cost us

         18  money, we have to work too hard - and therefore we

         19  want to do more self-regulation, which is what you

         20  are asking for, by giving the responsibility to the

         21  rigger to manage and make sure he is hiring people

         22  of quality.

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: To be

         24  responsive.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And not the
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          2  responsibility of the agency. So, I don't want that

          3  to be the main reason. I assume there are better

          4  reasons of not wanting the agency to do the work.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

          6  we currently can enforce against the licensee. This

          7  would strengthen our enforcement activities.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I am all for

          9  giving you as much enforcement as you possibly can

         10  use, but I want to make sure the enforcement

         11  happens, not just give you something written in the

         12  law saying we are enforcing it. And very often we

         13  have the self-certification, which you can enforce,

         14  but they don't do it. So the important thing for me

         15  is to make sure not only do you have enforcement,

         16  but that you have the capabilities of doing that

         17  enforcement.

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         19  we would enforce, I could assure you of this. If the

         20  licensee is held responsible, if there is an

         21  accident, then there is an investigation, the facts

         22  will come out and if the individual did not receive

         23  the appropriate training, the licensee is

         24  responsible and then we can suspend that license, we

         25  can revoke it, we can find that individual.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Commissioner,

          3  what are we going to do to ensure that the employees

          4  who are employed by the rigger are giving the proper

          5  training beforehand? Does he have to certify to the

          6  fact --

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Our

          8  rules, and the proposed legislation would require

          9  it, each individual to receive training from a

         10  recognized scaffold training.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, is the

         12  rigger who is going to be hiring these people have

         13  to certify that they did receive the training?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You have a

         16  situation in the last minute something has to be

         17  done, it has to be done and he doesn't have

         18  available people who aren't trained. He has to hire

         19  somebody, and knows full well he is taking a chance.

         20                 But if you before the fact have to

         21  have the situation where he has to certify each and

         22  every person he has hired to do that job, according

         23  to his own standard, are qualified to do it,

         24  wouldn't that go along the way of, look, I can't

         25  hire you because I can't certify?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: In our

          3  rules he has to see, or she has to see --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But they have

          5  to certify.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: In our

          7  rules he is responsible for issuing what we are

          8  calling a certificate of fitness to each of the

          9  employees who are working on it. In order to issue

         10  that they have to produce a certificate from a

         11  recognized training course. He issues that

         12  certificate and we will monitor sites --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Who keeps

         14  those papers, who keeps those certificates?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: The

         16  individual worker will have to have that

         17  certificate.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Not the

         19  rigger himself?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         21  the rigger is the person in our rules who issues

         22  that certificate.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So you are

         24  saying he can be trained by somebody else?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes, by
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          2  a recognized training curriculum.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Right and he

          4  shows that to the rigger.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Right.

          6  He shows that to the rigger, the rigger will then

          7  issue a certificate of fitness card, ID card, to

          8  that individual, with a photo ID so that when we go

          9  to the site we can see that --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: There is a

         11  paper trail here, is my point.

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: There

         13  is absolutely a paper trail, and of course our rules

         14  would differ from the legislation because the rules

         15  are spelling out in great detail how this whole

         16  process would work.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Is there

         18  anything in this legislation that precludes you from

         19  issuing rules and regulations? Very often we have

         20  passed legislation which the agency has to provide

         21  for rules and regulations. Is there any reason why

         22  you cannot issue rules and regulations? Are they

         23  mutually exclusive?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         25  the legislation generally has to provide for the
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          2  Department's ability to promulgate those rules

          3  relative to particular issues --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: In order to

          5  carry out the legislation intended -- in other

          6  words, would you support this legislation if we

          7  included the individuals, the groups that you

          8  wanted, and also provided for rules and regulation?

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes, I

         10  would be more inclined to be in favor of it. We

         11  would have to work with --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: He said he

         13  would be more inclined, Mr. Chairman --

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We

         15  would have to work with --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: If we

         17  provided them with rule-making power.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: With rule-making

         19  power?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: To carry out

         21  the terms of the legislation.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I think --

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We want

         24  to see the licensee in the loop and responsible.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Obviously we

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  all have the same motivation. The question is what

          3  is it about this legislation, which you say you

          4  admired the intent of, but it doesn't do what you

          5  want it to do.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Stanley, I don't

          7  think he admires the intent of it because he says

          8  clearly here, there was a time when he said not

          9  redundant but somewhat redundant.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well,

         11  redundancy doesn't say you don't admire the

         12  intention, that means you are repeating things that

         13  they want to do.

         14                 The question in my mind is whether or

         15  not we can put things in this legislation which

         16  would give your support. One of them, which I think

         17  you already have, is the power to issue rules and

         18  regulations and carry out the intent of the

         19  legislation, and the other would be to include the

         20  right people in there to give you regulatory power

         21  over.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: All right,

         23  Commissioner, you stated 352 is with the Finance

         24  Committee, which we don't control their calendar.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That is with

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  respect to 96-A, what we are talking about is 98-A.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Which we

          5  don't have legislation pending.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          7                 So, if there are no other questions,

          8  Commissioner, thanks very much. If you can have

          9  either you or a member of your staff stick around

         10  for awhile just to hear what some of the proponents

         11  of this measure have to say you may want to respond.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Mr. Chairman,

         13  I just have one question with respect to 96-A. You

         14  say in your statement on page three, the Department

         15  believes that licensing of general contracting and

         16  construction managers, instead of just demolition

         17  contractors would dramatically enhance our overall

         18  enforcement capability. So, in other words, you

         19  would support this legislation if you not only

         20  licensed the general contractor, but also the

         21  demolition contract?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I am in

         23  favor of licensing general contractors and

         24  construction managers --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Construction
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          2  managers and demolition contractors.

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No. I

          4  am in favor of licensing general contractors and

          5  construction managers.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And not

          7  demolition contractors?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No.

          9  A demolition contractor is a subcontractor. I

         10  believe that --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: They are the

         12  ones who actually do the demolition.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: They

         14  do the demolition but they are working for the

         15  general contractor.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: They have the

         17  expertise to do the demolition. Do they know which

         18  is a bearing wall and which is not a bearing wall so

         19  that we won't have situations which we have had in

         20  the City in the last couple of years?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: The

         22  general contractor is in control of the entire

         23  process. It is the entity that is supposed to be the

         24  most knowledgeable of these activities.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Right.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: And

          3  most of our problems have occurred in my testimony

          4  with alteration work, so there is not a demolition

          5  contractor per say, it is the general contractor's

          6  own forces who are doing the demolition work.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So I agree

          8  with you. I have no problem with licensing the

          9  construction managers, but what is wrong with also

         10  --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Stanley --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: -- Licensing,

         13  if there was a demolition contractor also licensing

         14  them as this bill does?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You may want to

         16  know that Intro. 352 that he makes reference to, in

         17  my opinion, is primarily an anti-corruption measure,

         18  as opposed to a fitness and experience and technical

         19  legislation, it goes against corruption and all of

         20  those kinds of measures that is going to make this

         21  -- it is going to be kind of rough studying of that

         22  measure before it is passed.

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Right.

         24  Well, I am not here to comment on --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But you make
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          2  reference over and over again to 352, so you have to

          3  know that it is an anti-corruption measure and not a

          4  safety and life protection measure.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: By

          6  licensing general contractors it becomes a piece of

          7  safety legislation, because we would look to

          8  rule-making to establish the necessary

          9  qualifications and the ability to revoke, suspend,

         10  deny licenses, if a contractor, you know, is doing

         11  work improperly.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What I don't

         13  understand, Commissioner Visconti, is why would you

         14  be against licensing the demolition contractor?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Because

         16  I believe that the general contractor is the

         17  individual who is totally in control of the process,

         18  has to be the most knowledgeable, and supervising

         19  the work of subcontractors, and a demo contractor

         20  is, you know, from our statistics, the problem is

         21  not in the pure demolition of a building but in the

         22  course of alteration work.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I noticed

         24  that in your statement and I can't disagree with

         25  you, but why not license all of the people who were
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          2  involved in this, including the demolition

          3  contractor?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

          5  then in effect you are going to have to have a

          6  general contractor license, because then you have to

          7  look at what the demolition work is, and there is

          8  virtually no project that takes place without some

          9  demolition work. Some has to be removed in an

         10  alteration.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Contractors

         12  hold themselves out to be experts in demolition

         13  only?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes.

         15  There are subcontractors.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Are they

         17  licensed?

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No,

         19  they are not.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Why not? I

         21  rest my case.

         22                 Mr. Chairman, that is all I have to

         23  say.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, thank you.

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Now we move to

          4  the next witness and that is Mr. Stephen McInnis, of

          5  the Carpenters Union. Here to testify on 96-A.

          6                 Please have a seat and identify

          7  yourselves, gentlemen.

          8                 Identify yourself, sir, and who you

          9  represent and we will be happy to hear your

         10  testimony.

         11                 MR. DWYER: Good morning. My name is

         12  Richard Dwyer, and I am the Director of Health and

         13  Safety for the New York District Council of

         14  Carpenters Labor Technical College. I come here

         15  today to speak in support of a law to require

         16  scaffold training for those workers who erect, as

         17  well as those workers who must work on scaffolds.

         18                 I feel uniquely qualified to testify

         19  on this bill because of my education and work

         20  background. I hold a doctorate from Rutgers

         21  University, I have written two books and over a

         22  dozen articles in the area of health and safety and

         23  adult education.

         24                 For the last 30 years I have been

         25  involved in adult education and/or construction
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          2  health and safety.

          3                 I do not believe that I have to

          4  repeat the scaffold accident horrors that have

          5  occurred in New York City in the very recent past,

          6  the media has done a commendable job. It is

          7  sufficient to say that we have all mourned those who

          8  have died and wince at the traffic gridlock that

          9  resulted from the necessary closing of midtown

         10  streets.

         11                 As expensive as these tragedies are

         12  to our society, they do not give the full picture.

         13                 When construction workers are injured

         14  or killed outside Midtown, the media does not

         15  provide the same front page attention it does for

         16  deaths of the public.

         17                 In the United States, 87 construction

         18  workers are injured and one dies every week as a

         19  result of scaffold-related accidents.

         20                 There is no question that training

         21  costs money, however, I contend that the cost of

         22  training cannot begin to be compared with the

         23  possible benefit the training could produce with

         24  fewer and less severe accidents.

         25                 OSHA estimates that scaffold
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          2  accidents cost contractors $90 million annually just

          3  in lost work days. This is not counting the costs of

          4  public deaths and the disruption from closing busy

          5  City streets.

          6                 I am not foolish enough to guarantee

          7  that training alone will produce positive behavioral

          8  change, but I will guarantee that behavior will not

          9  change without training.

         10                 OSHA already has laws. In fact, the

         11  Acting Commissioner before us spoke about those laws

         12  and they don't seem to be doing much, I just thought

         13  I would mention that, that govern the erection and

         14  use of scaffolds, these laws require that workers be

         15  trained. I am sure the City Building Code also

         16  requires safe practices in scaffold erection and

         17  use.

         18                 I submit to you, however, that the

         19  cost effective way to ensure safe erection and use

         20  of scaffold is to require workers be trained in a

         21  specific and substantive training course.

         22                 In a previous job I spent a lot of

         23  hours in Washington, D.C. at federal OSHA, arguing

         24  with contractors who told me that no worker can be

         25  trained for more than 20 minutes. They simply can't
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          2  sit that long, and they certainly can't absorb it.

          3  And I have a fear that the training that was talked

          4  about before, is training that will be so off the

          5  cuff and so minimal that it will have no use and no

          6  impact.

          7                 I will get back to my testimony now.

          8                 To leave the decision on content and

          9  how long the worker is trained to individuals who

         10  lack experience and knowledge in adult education

         11  techniques will not solve the problem. You must

         12  ensure that substantive training occurs and a

         13  specific course of study must be mandated and the

         14  instructors trained to deliver this training.

         15  Fortunately such training already exists.

         16                 The Occupational Safety and Health

         17  Administration's Training Institute, in cooperation

         18  with management, scaffold manufacturers and labor

         19  has developed a state-of-the-art training course for

         20  both scaffold erectors and users.

         21                 The scaffold erectors course is 40

         22  hours in length and contains the following topics:

         23  The law, sub-part L, the nature of the five major

         24  hazards falling from scaffolds, objects falling from

         25  scaffolds, electrical dangers, collapsing scaffolds,
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          2  dangers of climbing up and down scaffolds, the

          3  correct procedures to deal with those five hazards,

          4  the proper use of scaffolds, proper handling of

          5  material, maximum intended load and load carrying

          6  capacities, the correct procedures for erecting,

          7  disassembling, moving, operating, repairing, et

          8  cetera.

          9                 The design criteria, maximum intended

         10  load carrying capacity and the intended use of the

         11  scaffold.

         12                 The most important part of the

         13  training is a 16-hour hands on component where the

         14  students must practice the correct procedures that

         15  have been taught in the class and actually erect,

         16  move, disassemble and inspect the scaffolds that

         17  they are working on.

         18                 This 40 percent, this hands on 40

         19  percent is crucial because this is the opportunity

         20  for the students to practice the good procedures

         21  that they learned, without that kind of good

         22  educational technique, with a videotape that goes

         23  ten minutes or a lunchbox talk and that becomes

         24  scaffold training, you will not, I guarantee you,

         25  change behavior.
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          2                 Workers who work on scaffold are also

          3  responsible to be trained under the law currently,

          4  but I contend that without a specific training

          5  program, you are not going to get the desired

          6  results, in fact, I think what we have seen in the

          7  past for the record shows you you are not going to

          8  get the desired results, because the OSHA law that

          9  the Commissioner mentioned has been in effect for

         10  three years, and I submit that we have had several

         11  scaffold accidents in the last three years.

         12                 The Carpenters Labor Technical

         13  College already offers this training, in fact the

         14  training is offered throughout the United States, we

         15  offer it to our members and our signatory members.

         16                 I can attest from that to the

         17  thoroughness of the training. This training has been

         18  offered, as I said, throughout the United States,

         19  with feedback from instructors who have taught it

         20  and students who have taken it. The course satisfies

         21  the requirements of OSHA and is available to all

         22  qualified training providers from the OSHA Training

         23  Institute. In other words, it is not a course that

         24  only we have.

         25                 By making this specific course of
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          2  study required of all individuals who erect and use

          3  scaffolds in New York City, you can take a step

          4  toward ensuring fewer scaffold-related accidents. I

          5  have attached to my testimony of the United States

          6  Labor Department's press release regarding the

          7  launching of this cooperative training program for

          8  scaffolds in the construction industry.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. McInnis, do

         11  you have something to add?

         12                 MR. McINNIS: Good morning, Mr.

         13  Chairman, fellow Council members, ladies and

         14  gentlemen. My name is Stephen McInnis and I am the

         15  Political Director for the New York City District

         16  Council of Carpenters. I am here today to convey our

         17  strong support for adding safety training

         18  requirements in the form of certificate of fitness

         19  for scaffolding and sidewalk bridge workers to the

         20  building code as prescribed in the bill 98-A being

         21  discussed here today.

         22                 I hope to address three important

         23  questions:

         24                 Why are you proposing this

         25  legislation before the City Council?
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          2                 How do we arrive at the language

          3  currently proposed?

          4                 How can this legislation be

          5  effectively implemented?

          6                 In a few years since the City Council

          7  imposed legislation, Local Law 11, requiring

          8  mandatory periodic inspections of building

          9  structures, we have seen an explosion in the amount

         10  of sidewalk, bridge and scaffolding work in New York

         11  City.

         12                 With the increased volume of work, we

         13  have also seen a dramatic increase in the amount of

         14  companies and workers in the field. Many of these

         15  workers unfortunately are untrained day laborers who

         16  are picked up by these companies.

         17                 Having untrained day laborers working

         18  dangerously high above pedestrians has become the

         19  norm rather than the exception in New York City.

         20  Although we understand that we cannot eliminate all

         21  access through training, by requiring safety

         22  training for scaffolding erectors and users, we hope

         23  to limit the number of injuries, deaths and lawsuits

         24  that occur each year related to scaffolding.

         25                 We at the District Council feel it is
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          2  necessary to define in this bill the type of

          3  training required for the certificate of fitness.

          4  The OSHA designed 40 hour Erectors Course and 8 hour

          5  Users Course were developed through a cooperative

          6  effort between government, business and labor. These

          7  courses are recognized as the industry standard for

          8  scaffold training and are required under Federal

          9  OSHA regulations.

         10                 At the present time only two schools

         11  in New York City offer this training, the New York

         12  City District Council of Carpenters Labor Technical

         13  College and the Laborers Union Training facility.

         14                 Some people have argued that we are

         15  trying to monopolize the industry and force

         16  companies to become union through this piece of

         17  legislation.

         18                 This is simply not true. The course

         19  outline is syllabus and readily available from OSHA.

         20  We do not have a patent on the training.

         21                 Any legitimate non-union entity

         22  attempting to conduct this training will have no

         23  trouble finding this information and associating

         24  with one of the numerous trade and technical schools

         25  located in New York City.
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          2                 Since this training is not mandated

          3  by the City of New York, to my knowledge no

          4  non-union company in New York City has made this

          5  investment in worker training and pedestrian safety

          6  and put their workforce through this training.

          7                 Another piece of this legislation

          8  that we feel is vital to the integrity of the bill

          9  is the requirement that the program be a New York

         10  State Department of Labor approved training program.

         11                 The State DOL has internal mechanisms

         12  already in place necessary to evaluate and certify

         13  construction-related programs.

         14                 Currently there is a moratorium on

         15  approving new programs while they conduct an

         16  internal review of their process. This moratorium

         17  should be lifted within the next few months.

         18                 A number of public agencies,

         19  including the School Construction Authority, require

         20  that their contractors be associated with a State

         21  DOL Approved Training Program.

         22                 It has been our experience and the

         23  experience of our contractors that the New York City

         24  Department of Buildings lacks the resources to

         25  effectively monitor the scaffolding and sidewalk
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          2  bridge industries.

          3                 Most scaffolding and sidewalk bridge

          4  jobs are completed in a matter of days, if not

          5  hours. If you have had any experience dealing with

          6  the Buildings Department, you will know, even with

          7  their best efforts put forward, response time for

          8  complaints can take weeks.

          9                 It is our contention, therefore, that

         10  the City Council is interested in forwarding this

         11  legislation, it also must be adamant about adding

         12  this training requirement to public works projects

         13  bid language requirements.

         14                 Public work accounts for a large

         15  portion of this market.

         16                 Almost every company that we have

         17  seen is involved in or looking to become involved in

         18  public work. If the City of New York requires that

         19  only "responsible" scaffolding and sidewalk bridge

         20  companies be awarded city contracts and

         21  subcontracts, with responsible being defined as

         22  having a State DOL Approved Training Program, then

         23  and only then will we see an increase in the amount

         24  of safety awareness and training. If that is not the

         25  intention of the Council, passing this law, the only
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          2  real effect would be to put further burden on the

          3  already compliant companies.

          4                 Erecting scaffolding and sidewalk

          5  bridges above pedestrian traffic is a dangerous

          6  proposition under the best of circumstances. When

          7  you add to the mix fly by night contractors and

          8  untrained workers, the public is put at an even

          9  greater risk. We ask that you seriously consider

         10  this legislation and how it will raise the level of

         11  safety training and consciousness in this very

         12  dangerous business.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. McInnis, as

         15  it relates to sidewalk sheds, you heard the

         16  Commissioner state that they have other than an

         17  occasional vehicle running in to the supporting

         18  beams or tubes, they have no history or record of

         19  accidents with sidewalk sheds. Is that a true

         20  statement?

         21                 MR. McINNIS: It is not a true

         22  statement based on our experience. We have a

         23  videotape that we took of some of the work that is

         24  going on up there, if you would like to see that.

         25  And one in specifically was the school being put up
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          2  at Brooklyn, it didn't turn into an accident but it

          3  was a very hazardous situation.

          4                 We spoke to these workers afterwards,

          5  there will be written testimony handed in at a later

          6  date, because of the change in days we weren't able

          7  to bring the person here, but we monitored this, and

          8  I don't think Mr. Visconti has actually been out to

          9  watch how these things are put up.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Regardless of

         11  how they are put up, his statement was, that other

         12  than an occasional vehicle, auto, truck, whatever,

         13  motorcycle, running into one of these structures,

         14  supporting structures --

         15                 MR. McINNIS: A lot of these injuries

         16  go unreported because of the content of the

         17  workforce. A lot of this workforce is an immigrant

         18  workforce, a lot --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But if the

         20  accident is not reported, is it an accident?

         21                 MR. McINNIS: It is still an accident.

         22  It is still an accident but they are going

         23  unreported.

         24                 You know, we had seen, you know, five

         25  years ago there was a smaller number of contractors
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          2  doing scaffolding and sidewalk and bridge work in

          3  New York City. For the passage of Local Law 11 --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I am talking

          5  about sidewalk sheds --

          6                 MR. McINNIS: Specifically sidewalk

          7  sheds, there has been an explosion in the amount of

          8  companies and they are preying on the immigrant

          9  workforce and there is a lot of accidents --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You know, a

         11  landscape artist, not a landscape artist, gardeners,

         12  you know, it is clear, restaurants, factories, they

         13  are all feasting off of the immigrant population, so

         14  this is no different.

         15                 MR. McINNIS: Correct. Right. The

         16  documentation of this is the Building Department

         17  does not look into this -- I think that was a

         18  general statement that all accidents happened by

         19  cars crashing into and the specifics of this rests

         20  with the Buildings Department, they have that

         21  information. And we haven't really been able to get

         22  too much out of them on that, when we reinquired on

         23  that.

         24                 Our biggest thing here is that

         25  workers are being injured putting up sidewalk
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          2  bridges and scaffolding.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: If you can

          4  provide the Committee with a list of accidents --

          5                 MR. McINNIS: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And workers

          7  involved who have been injured --

          8                 MR. McINNIS: Right. With the change

          9  in the time of the hearing, we had some people set

         10  up to testify last time, so we will be able to

         11  provide that, yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, we would

         13  be happy to receive it.

         14                 Mr. Dwyer, as it relates to the OSHA,

         15  Mr. Visconti in his testimony states that OSHA rules

         16  are extensive, and in his opinion inadequate?

         17                 MR. DWYER: He is absolutely right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: These rules set

         19  forth safety obligations to be performed by a

         20  competent person, which is defined as one who is

         21  capable of identifying existing and predictable

         22  hazards in the surrounding of working conditions

         23  which are unsanitary, hazardous, et cetera, et

         24  cetera, and who have authorization to take prompt

         25  corrective measures and to eliminate them.
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          2                 MR. DWYER: He quoted you directly

          3  from the standard. Now let me tell you about the

          4  real world.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          6                 MR. DWYER: OSHA's building is

          7  cater-corner to our building and they were putting

          8  in the passport office on Hudson Street part of the

          9  building, and there was a scaffolding going up which

         10  was not in compliance, shall I say, with all of that

         11  wonderful language that the Commissioner quoted to

         12  you.

         13                 So, I decided to call OSHA since

         14  their office is in that building, and suggested that

         15  they might want to walk to the other end of the

         16  building and look out the window. The scaffold

         17  continued to be rather unsafe and continued to go up

         18  and came down, fortunately there were no accidents.

         19                 I drive a long way to come to work

         20  each morning, if I believed there were no State

         21  Troopers on the highway, do you think I would go the

         22  speed limit? We have a lot of laws that OSHA

         23  promulgates. If there are no compliance officers out

         24  there looking at the site, do you think they are

         25  going to comply with the standard?
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          2                 The way to get this done, and I think

          3  OSHA realizes this is happening, and the whole focus

          4  that OSHA has moved to is to start mandating

          5  training.

          6                 I was in OSHA, Washington with OSHA

          7  trying to look at a new standard that they are

          8  promulgating that will require training of every

          9  worker in safety and health before they go day one

         10  on any job. And that is where OSHA is moving.

         11                 The problem that I had when I worked

         12  in Washington in dealing with this was that people

         13  who don't know about education techniques, who think

         14  that you can lecture to a worker for 40 hours, or

         15  for long periods of time, put them to sleep. That is

         16  why you need competent trainers, with a competent

         17  curriculum and it has to be specified in order to

         18  have a chance at getting behavioral change. We don't

         19  want to train people for the sake of training

         20  people, we want to train people so that their

         21  behavior in erecting these scaffolds and working on

         22  these scaffolds change for the better.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Dwyer, I

         24  share your concern. It is not happy to view the news

         25  or read a paper and see people dangling or being
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          2  removed or excavated from various dangerous

          3  situations resulting from scaffold or sidewalk sheds

          4  or building collapses. The troubling aspect of it

          5  is, training is awful essential and helpful, but

          6  unless we have enforcement, the Commissioner stated

          7  about cyclical sweeps, but 99 percent of the

          8  Department of Buildings, I am not sure what OSHA's

          9  record is, but it is complaint driven, and unless

         10  someone gets on the phone and says, hey, can you see

         11  what is going on over here, nobody is watching.

         12  Nobody is watching.

         13                 MR. DWYER: Yes. I think that is why

         14  you have got to require the training. I could go

         15  along with the Commissioner. I wouldn't ever cite a

         16  worker, but then I have kind of commitments there. I

         17  think it is the employer's responsibility to make

         18  sure that the workers are trained. I think it is the

         19  employer who goes bad if the workers aren't trained

         20  and those are the ones I hold responsible. I gather

         21  that is not the intent of the standard, maybe I

         22  don't fully understand how the enforcement part of

         23  it will go, but you are absolutely right, we have

         24  got to find a way to train this workforce so that

         25  they are knowledgeable. We train skilled carpenters
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          2  for 40 hours, and we think that is minimum to do the

          3  work.

          4                 And what I have been hearing is that

          5  we have a lot of people who we think might be

          6  considered nail pounders and not carpenters, trying

          7  to do the work and maybe the 40 yours wouldn't even

          8  be enough, but it is a start.

          9                 The other thing I am concerned about

         10  is I don't want to put all of the onus on training,

         11  training doesn't automatically translate into

         12  behavioral change. I think that if it is done well

         13  then it has a shot, and I do know that if you don't

         14  train you won't have behavioral change, that I do

         15  know.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Does any member

         17  of the Committee have a question of Mr. Dwyer or Mr.

         18  McInnis?

         19                 Gentlemen, I want to thank you for

         20  your testimony, and I assure you that this will not,

         21  as stated at the outset we are not voting on this

         22  bill today obviously, it has a lot of work, there is

         23  a lot of work that must be done before we reach an

         24  agreement with the Administration, even among

         25  ourselves.
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          2                 Clearly you have to understand when

          3  the Administration, as represented by the

          4  Commissioner of the Department is in opposition, it

          5  does not facilitate an easy future for the passage

          6  of legislation of this nature.

          7                 MR. McINNIS: Yes. We were hopeful,

          8  though, listening to his testimony that he does

          9  recognize the problem. The problem that we see with

         10  his solutions is that he is just looking for

         11  somebody liable after an accident. We are looking to

         12  be a little bit more proactive than reactive.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And I share in

         14  respect to your concerns and views.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 Francis X. McArdle.

         17                 Identify yourself, sir.

         18                 Sir, good morning.

         19                 MR. McARDLE: Good morning, Mr.

         20  Chairman.

         21                 My name is Frank McArdle. I am here

         22  to speak on behalf of the General Contractors

         23  Association to address some of the issues that have

         24  been raised about Intro. 96-A and 98-A. You have

         25  heard earlier from the Buildings Commissioner, or
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          2  the Acting Buildings Commissioner, that all of these

          3  problems would be solved by the passage of Intro.

          4  352. I must commend the Chair --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Sort of

          6  simplistically I would think.

          7                 MR. McARDLE: I must commend the

          8  Chairman for his very astute observation about the

          9  origins of that piece of legislation and its

         10  objectives. It does not deal with competence in any

         11  way, it does not deal with technical expertise. It

         12  deals strictly with integrity issues. A piece of

         13  legislation formulated for that purpose cannot meet

         14  the needs that have been addressed in Intro. 96-A

         15  and 98-A.

         16                 Let me express my views first on

         17  Intro. 98-A, the scaffolding legislation.

         18                 In this, in his testimony I think Mr.

         19  Visconti did identify quite clearly the requirements

         20  that exist under OSHA, but the question that you

         21  have to address yourself to is whether or not the

         22  OSHA rules of their own in fact provide the public

         23  with adequate protection.

         24                 From the point of view of my

         25  industry, I think we recognize that the people who
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          2  are involved in the erection of scaffolding do in

          3  fact bear a great responsibility to the public,

          4  particularly when that scaffolding is exposing the

          5  public as it does in so many circumstances.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. McInnis

          7  talked about day laborers and inexperienced people,

          8  and you represent employers, right?

          9                 MR. McARDLE: I represent employers.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Is that practice

         11  prevalent among those that you represent, just

         12  throwing inexperienced people and day laborers and

         13  exploiting immigrants and things of that nature?

         14                 MR. McARDLE: No. And I think because

         15  our organization does have a collective bargaining

         16  relationship with Mr. McInnis' organization, we are

         17  far from the employment of day laborers or day

         18  carpenters or inexperienced people, but there are

         19  many out there who do that, and you find them

         20  everywhere, and they are the people that are

         21  producing the problems that we have, whether it is

         22  with scaffolding or with alteration work, people who

         23  in fact do each morning drive to street corners and

         24  you can find them in the other boroughs as they are

         25  now called. I have not seen them in Manhattan, but I
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          2  know they exist throughout this area, and you pick

          3  up a few laborers in the morning, and you go and do

          4  a job, whether it is cleaning out a building, or

          5  taking down a facade or doing something and then you

          6  go away in the night and you pay them and you are

          7  gone and your truck, which in the City of New York

          8  is supposed to have lettering of a certain size and

          9  your equipment is supposed to have lettering of a

         10  certain size, seems magically to not have that when

         11  it passes my eyes, and they are gone and they go

         12  away.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Whose

         14  responsibility is it to enforce against this type.

         15  This is a violation of -- assuming that you are not

         16  a union contractor, either you have a contractor

         17  with carpenters or with other trades, who enforces

         18  against these unqualified, inexperienced, untrained

         19  workers being used in this capacity.

         20                 Obviously the worker is happy to get

         21  the days work, the person who has the job is happy

         22  to have someone do his work, so who enforces against

         23  it?

         24                 MR. McARDLE: All of this is under the

         25  purview of the buildings department, and their
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          2  inspectors, but their inspectors focus on the most

          3  populated area, they focus on the most, perhaps most

          4  visible areas, and they don't necessarily focus in

          5  the areas where this work is going on, in the other

          6  boroughs, in the backyards, there for a day on the

          7  front, and scaffolding will be erected, and

          8  materials will be loaded on that scaffolding, and

          9  the public is at risk when that happens.

         10                 And, again, the rules, OSHA has rules

         11  to protect the workers, competent erection of

         12  scaffolding, but that presumes that OSHA has the

         13  presence --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Or DOB has a

         15  presence.

         16                 MR. McARDLE: Exactly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         18                 MR. McARDLE: And they don't always

         19  have that presence. They don't always have the

         20  people there, and one of the problems that it has

         21  presented is that there is no other way to assure

         22  that this is being done properly.

         23                 For example, a police officer comes

         24  by and is well trained and looking after the public,

         25  he can say that doesn't look right. But he has no

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            66

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  way of saying do you have a certificate on

          3  competence to erect that scaffolding? Can I see that

          4  you know what you are doing?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Does he have no

          6  right to do that?

          7                 MR. McARDLE: Well, he can ask the

          8  question but he has nothing to ask for. He doesn't

          9  have something to say produce something.

         10                 Mr. Visconti says, well, if you pass

         11  the legislation to license general contractors and

         12  construction managers you would solve this problem.

         13  But the problems exist, the 119 collapses that he

         14  talked about are 113, are in buildings far outside

         15  the world of the construction managers and general

         16  contractors that he talks about.

         17                 The are people that are in basements

         18  cutting beams or cutting support beams on second

         19  floors, as they rework piping.

         20                 These are not the general contractors

         21  who would fall under 352.

         22                 Quite frankly, 352 would in fact

         23  gather into its gambit the largest of companies, not

         24  the people who are creating most of the problems.

         25  And it would not gather in those companies that are
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          2  engaged by a landlord who may have one or two

          3  commercial buildings in a strip, who find somebody

          4  to do his work because he needs that renovation and

          5  any one of you can name a street in your district

          6  where you have seen that happen on a side street

          7  perhaps, where they --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I wouldn't even

          9  know if it was legal or illegal, trained or

         10  untrained, I just see workers going in and out of a

         11  building, that's all.

         12                 MR. McARDLE: And in fact, in many

         13  cases you don't always necessarily find the Building

         14  Department certificate that you see plastered on the

         15  windows in Manhattan. Even those certificates are

         16  not always as fully informative of what work is

         17  covered within the building and who is doing it and

         18  who you call, and certainly I have seen this in so

         19  many districts.

         20                 So, from that perspective, you need

         21  some scheme that will allow people to ask those

         22  questions of people so they can say, hey, not only

         23  do you have the building permit, maybe they can

         24  produce the building permit, but they can't produce

         25  any evidence that they have a clue about what they
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          2  are doing. And licensing 352-A will not in fact

          3  achieve what you wish to achieve.

          4                 I think we need to do work here.

          5                 I am not sure and we have said we

          6  don't think that every time scaffolding is used that

          7  we need to have every person on the scaffolding with

          8  a certificate, but someone must be present who in

          9  fact knows what can happen on that scaffolding.

         10  Someone must be there. Not just a person who erects

         11  it, because he may erect it and go away, but someone

         12  who is competent.

         13                 And I will tell you, Chairman, I live

         14  in Manhattan, I have now since 1970, right next to

         15  my building I can see a brand new hi-rise

         16  construction building under construction by Chrysler

         17  Forman, right on Broadway. And behind me I can see

         18  a, kind of a water proofing and pointing job

         19  underway. And the one job by a large company that

         20  would be caught already, has excellent safety rules.

         21  I see the person using their safety equipment. I see

         22  the signs calling for safety meetings, and I watch

         23  the scaffolding being erected behind me, and I am

         24  marveled that those people were alive, because they

         25  weren't wearing safety harnesses, the people putting
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          2  that up, you know, were kind of putting a jigsaw

          3  puzzle together, you know, in this case 150 feet in

          4  the air with no safety line.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So who did you

          6  call?

          7                 MR. McARDLE: I watched. I am waiting

          8  to take the video and then I will call.

          9                 Because when you call, when will the

         10  person come? You know, this is it. When will they

         11  find people.

         12                 With respect to demolition

         13  contracting, our view is again that it focuses on

         14  individuals. It only covers circumstances where you

         15  have a demolition permit in place, and we were

         16  concerned when this was introduced, and some of you

         17  may recall when your colleague Ms. Eldridge

         18  introduced this first, it was when there was a

         19  collapse of demolition work up at 68th and Broadway,

         20  when a demolition contractor unloaded a bearing wall

         21  and spilled the brick into the street, and again in

         22  the other boroughs, this is not an uncommon

         23  happening when they are taking down buildings that

         24  need to be taken down. But it doesn't cover every

         25  circumstance.
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          2                 And we had said at that time to the

          3  City's Buildings Commissioner, not Mr. Visconti, but

          4  a predecessor, that we thought, quite frankly, many

          5  of the structural improprieties were the real risk

          6  and that the bill didn't cover it.

          7                 At that time they said they would

          8  talk further with us. They haven't. We do not

          9  believe that 352 is the solution to this problem, I

         10  must tell you. It doesn't get at the issues we have

         11  talked about today. We need to work together to

         12  draft a bill that will work for all of us.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And we thank

         15  you, Mr. McArdle.

         16                 The next person to testify is Mr.

         17  Blaise Parascandola.

         18                 Just let me give the other names. Joe

         19  Bianco, Michael McGuire, James Bynum, Timothy

         20  Warrington, Sean McGlain, and Paul Fernandes. See,

         21  we have a number yet to speak, so gentlemen, try to

         22  keep within some constraint time, in consideration

         23  for others who speak after you.

         24                 Identify yourself, Mr. Parascandola,

         25  and the gentleman who is with you. This is a face I
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          2  think that is familiar, and he has been here before.

          3                 MR. PARASCANDOLA: Yes, Mr. Chairman.

          4  My name is Blaise Parascandola. I am the Code

          5  Consultant to Bricklayers and Allied Craftsman,

          6  Local Union Number 1, and I have here with me Sean

          7  McGloin, who is the Vice President of Bricklayers,

          8  Local Number 1, and we also have here with us Larry

          9  Gravado, who is an investigator for Bricklayers

         10  Local Number 1.

         11                 Let me just say at the outset we are

         12  happy that this hearing is being held but it has

         13  been held a number of times in the past. We have

         14  been living with this Intro. 98-A, in this

         15  particular Council, in the previous Council it was

         16  Intro. 279-A, and we also had an intro in the

         17  Administration of Mayor Koch, and during Mayor

         18  Dinkins' Administration, we came a little bit close

         19  to getting this done, but of course that never came

         20  to pass. And we are glad to see now, as a result of

         21  the increased construction activity here in the City

         22  of New York, that other trades are seeing the

         23  situation as we saw in the past because our work was

         24  ongoing, it was maintenance work essentially, and we

         25  are glad to see that the carpenters and the painters
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          2  are involved in this legislation and that there are

          3  new amendments that cover their scaffolding work.

          4                 We know now, because of Local Law

          5  Number 11, there has been increased construction

          6  work, and as a result there are going to be

          7  problems, which will result in accidents.

          8                 You know back in 1990 when we

          9  testified, we said that there were 22 workers that

         10  died in construction accidents, which were reported

         11  with OSHA, and 12 of the debts in 1990 were the

         12  results of falls from scaffolds. And, again, the

         13  OSHA reports do not indicate which fatalities were

         14  caused by unsafe work conditions. However, the

         15  safety violations were issued.

         16                 Since 1990 there have been

         17  approximately 50 accidents in New York City

         18  involving scaffolds which resulted in at least six

         19  deaths.

         20                 Now, in Brooklyn, Charles Hynes, the

         21  Kings County District Attorney indicted the

         22  contractors who were working at PS 131, Brooklyn,

         23  where a young student was killed who was going to

         24  pick up her sister, tragic accident, by falling

         25  bricks which were used to hold down a tarp on the
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          2  roof, a clear and egregious violation of any safety

          3  regulations.

          4                 The contractor, Espo Construction,

          5  has pled guilty to criminal charges.

          6                 It didn't involve scaffold directly

          7  but it shows what can happen when you have

          8  unqualified workers on the job.

          9                 As an aside, the contractor was also,

         10  as we have been citing before about day laborers and

         11  all of that, this contractor was cited for

         12  underpaying his workers, who were obviously

         13  unqualified because they were not being paid

         14  prevailing wages as was required by the School

         15  Construction Authority.

         16                 As I said, this introductory mirrors

         17  279-A, which has now been expanded to include these

         18  other fixed scaffolds, and we have no problem with

         19  that. Basically the tradesman and the workmen that

         20  we represent are in two-point suspended scaffolds.

         21                 Of course, scaffold accidents attract

         22  attention when they happen in Manhattan, and when

         23  they cause problems on Madison Avenue, where all the

         24  fancy boutiques are.

         25                 But it is very interesting that on
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          2  August 15th, while I was reading an obituary of the

          3  late Hall of Fame shortstop, the great Pee Wee Reese

          4  of the Brooklyn Dodgers, on the obituary page there

          5  was a little article, worker killed and three hurt

          6  as platform falls. Where was this accident? It

          7  occurred at 6833 Shore Road, Brooklyn. Nothing was

          8  on television about it, nothing was on headlines,

          9  because it was in Manhattan.

         10                 So this is what former Commissioner

         11  McArdle has stated, and this is what happens. But we

         12  hope now that we do not have to have the continuing

         13  accidents that occur for this legislation to be

         14  passed.

         15                 You know, Intro. 98-A provides that

         16  an individual can obtain a certificate of fitness in

         17  one of the following ways:

         18                 He successfully completes a training

         19  program approved by the Commissioner. And this

         20  program we are talking about now specifically

         21  includes rigging and work practices for suspended

         22  scaffolds, boatswain chairs, both manual and power

         23  operated. And safety procedures and practices and

         24  techniques of the protection of the public are

         25  included.
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          2                 There is a school run by bricklayers

          3  local number 1, where these workers are trained. And

          4  at the time, it was during the time we had this bill

          5  with Mayor Dinkins Administration, they said, well,

          6  you can't just have a union program, I think, as you

          7  remember, and we said, well, we will take any

          8  training program that is approved by the

          9  Commissioner.

         10                 They said okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We recall that.

         12                 MR. PARASCANDOLA: You remember that.

         13  We came very close, unfortunately it didn't come to

         14  pass. We hope we are not now speaking on deaf ears.

         15  I think from the sense of the Council here now that

         16  something is going to be done.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But you also

         18  heard from the Commissioner who clearly states the

         19  Administration's position in opposition.

         20                 MR. PARASCANDOLA: I think they have

         21  promulgated rules. I think Councilman Michels made a

         22  very good point. He says, pass Intro. 98-A and if

         23  they want to have additional rules, fine, because

         24  they have been waiting since March of 1998. They

         25  have meetings and then months and months go by.
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          2                 I am not saying they haven't come up

          3  with some useful suggestions, they now finally

          4  recognize there should be some training for a worker

          5  to be on a scaffold, but you cannot put the

          6  authorization to issue a certificate of fitness to

          7  the contractor who hires these workers. It is just

          8  fraught with a lot of problems. On the one hand he

          9  may just say anybody here is your certificate.

         10                 On the other hand, you may have a

         11  good worker, and then for some reason the contractor

         12  has an animosity toward him, he is mad at him, he

         13  may decline him and then this guy is out of work.

         14  You have to have an independent authority, and that

         15  is what we are asking, that these rules, there is a

         16  provision there in the present legislation that you

         17  have a test administered by the City for anyone. So,

         18  we are not saying someone that comes in, maybe from

         19  another country, that has been experienced in this,

         20  he could take a test.

         21                 We also have grandfathering in there,

         22  to provide that someone that has worked within the

         23  last ten years of the immediate 15 years has been

         24  employed by a licensed special rigger, master

         25  rigger, that that would qualify him to get --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr.

          3  Parascandola, many of the points that you make

          4  reference to are no longer in the new version of the

          5  bill. We responded to your concerns in that way by

          6  changing and making adjustments, as we will as a

          7  result of this hearing today make additional

          8  adjustments to the bill. But specifically as to some

          9  of the points you are speaking to now are no longer

         10  in the current bill.

         11                 MR. PARASCANDOLA: Well, Mr. Chairman,

         12  we want to see the bill pass.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And we want to

         14  pass the bill, sir.

         15                 MR. PARASCANDOLA: The certificate of

         16  fitness is not now in the amended version?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Yes, the

         18  certificate of fitness is in there. But the options

         19  that you make reference to are not.

         20                 Okay, Mr. McGlion, do you want to add

         21  something to this debate proceeding?

         22                 MR. McGLOIN: Yes. I just want to say

         23  every day my job is to go around checking jobs and

         24  trying to sign up non-union contractors. I have

         25  worked for 37 years on scaffolds. What Mr. Visconti
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          2  said about a special riggers license, in order to

          3  quality for that you have to be one of the

          4  principals of the company, and one of the other

          5  gentleman that spoke before me said that in the real

          6  world you really don't think the president or the

          7  vice president of that company is on every one of

          8  his jobs. What he does is he gets someone who he

          9  feels is competent and he sends them out there. For

         10  him to make the judgement call on who is competent,

         11  the thing what we are looking for is the individual,

         12  once that scaffold is hung and he is working on it,

         13  does he know the terminology of what the different

         14  parts are, does he know the safety procedures? Mr.

         15  Visconti also said that it would be a hardship on

         16  immigrant workers, well if you had a fellow working

         17  up above you and he didn't understand you and there

         18  was something ready to fall, and you were trying to

         19  get the word to him, it would be tough trying to

         20  figure out what lingo he does speak. So, a training

         21  program would address the different nationalities we

         22  have and show them the name of the different type of

         23  things, that is all we are looking for. We are just

         24  looking at the person working above you, below you,

         25  next to you, is competent on that particular
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          2  scaffold, knows how if there is a breakdown, how to

          3  lower the scaffold down properly.

          4                 That is the main issue that --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Your union

          6  doesn't cover workers on sidewalk sheds, the

          7  erection --

          8                 MR. McGLOIN: No.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You only cover

         10  --

         11                 MR. McGLOIN: Suspended scaffolds,

         12  two-point or outrigger suspended scaffolds.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You are a union

         14  representative, correct? And when you go out in

         15  these various sites, what are the most egregious

         16  violations that you find and the largest number?

         17                 MR. McGLOIN: Well, I found jobs where

         18  they say they require a sidewalk shed. I have been

         19  on jobs in Manhattan on these little side streets

         20  over in the west side where a piece of yellow

         21  caution tape --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Serves the

         23  purpose of the sidewalk shed.

         24                 MR. McGLOIN: Tied around a couple of

         25  meters and one man standing down below while there
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          2  are four men up in the building working. And that is

          3  an out and out violation but it goes on. That is the

          4  real world, that is out there.

          5                 The City has, that we know of,

          6  approximately three inspectors that know anything

          7  about two-point suspender scaffolds and they can't

          8  be all over the place.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So we need more

         10  inspectors for the Department of Buildings.

         11                 MR. McGLOIN: Sure. You need someone

         12  to keep a grip on these people.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How about the

         14  use of untrained or non-union workers on union jobs?

         15                 MR. McGLOIN: We have a lot of that.

         16  We just had seven fellows come into our school, they

         17  are getting an average of $5 to $15, and they are on

         18  scaffolds every day.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What does a

         20  trained union worker receive?

         21                 MR. McGLOIN: A mechanic would get

         22  $41.70 total package with benefits. We had different

         23  rates to pay for apprentices, first year would get

         24  approximately $13, then up to $17 and so on.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So there is a
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          2  great incentive for these general contractors to use

          3  non-union and untrained and inexperienced workers.

          4                 MR. McGLOIN: Right. That is why the

          5  gentlemen that came over to the school, they they

          6  felt they weren't getting paid properly. When I

          7  checked their pay stubs, some of them were getting

          8  paid by cash which is a violation, and the other

          9  ones showed me they were getting $5 an hour. One

         10  gentleman there was getting $15.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, clearly

         12  there is a need for more inspectors and more

         13  important.

         14                 Mr. Parascandola?

         15                 MR. PARASCANDOLA: I have one thing to

         16  add, Mr. Chairman, as it relates to how the bill has

         17  been changed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We are joined by

         19  Council Member Boyland from Brooklyn, your borough.

         20                 MR. PARASCANDOLA: My borough.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And Helen

         22  Marshall from Queens.

         23                 MR. PARASCANDOLA: It still requires

         24  that there be a certificate of fitness to be issued

         25  by the Building Department. Yes, they took out the
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          2  grandfathering clause and the other qualifications.

          3  At this time we are inclined to support that

          4  because, as Councilman Michels said, we can request

          5  the Building Department and their rules, to

          6  recognize the grandfathering situation.

          7                 We understand that, but the surest

          8  way of getting this safety, it is to have this bill

          9  and the provisions of Intro. 98-A adopted as part of

         10  the law and not just wait for rules.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The next

         14  witness is Joe Bianco. Is Mr. Bianco here?

         15                 MR. BIANCO: Yes.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr.

         17  Bianco, do you have somebody else here with you?

         18                 MR. BIANCO: Yes, I do.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Who is that?

         20  Just identify yourself and then sign a slip. We will

         21  give you a slip to sign.

         22                 MR. BIANCO: My name is Joe Bianco. I

         23  am the Secretary Treasurer of the Demolition Workers

         24  Union, Local 95. We are affiliated with the Mason

         25  Tenders District Council of Greater New York, which
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          2  is affiliated with the Laborers' International Union

          3  of North America.

          4                 Sitting to my left is David Bulger,

          5  he is the Business Manager of Demolition Workers'

          6  Local 95.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I see you

          8  have a statement.

          9                 MR. BIANCO: Yes, I do.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Please

         11  proceed.

         12                 MR. BIANCO: I appreciate the

         13  opportunity to speak today to the Committee and

         14  allowing me the opportunity to speak.

         15                 My name is Joe Bianco, Secretary

         16  Treasurer of Demolition Workers Local 95. Demolition

         17  Workers Local 95 represents approximately 500

         18  demolition laborers working in all five boroughs of

         19  New York City.

         20                 The local is comprised of about 40

         21  percent African-Americans, 45 percent of Polish,

         22  Russian, Eastern Bloc descent, and about 15 percent

         23  Latino.

         24                 Demolition work is arguably the

         25  toughest job in the construction industry. During
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          2  the course of wrecking a building, workers are

          3  exposed to an array of potentially dangerous,

          4  including working at extreme heights, this is

          5  sometimes with the aid of a harness and sometimes

          6  without a harness, the worker is faced with the

          7  ingestion of hazardous materials, such as asbestos,

          8  silica and lead --

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What was

         10  that last one?

         11                 MR. BIANCO: Lead.

         12                 The constant fear of unsecured

         13  scaffolding which has led to injuries and deaths and

         14  the constant threat of unsecured walls and/or floors

         15  giving way due to properly secure them during

         16  demolition process.

         17                 Sixty and 90 pound jack-hammers are

         18  the standard tools used in total demolition or

         19  wrecking.

         20                 When a worker is operating these

         21  heavy pieces of equipment at excessive heights, he

         22  or she is given the task of removing hundreds of

         23  pounds of debris while simultaneously keeping

         24  balance as to not to fall.

         25                 Falls account for 702 fatalities
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          2  nationwide last year, according to the Bureau of

          3  Labor Statistics. Many of these falls happened

          4  during the total demolition of buildings.

          5                 Severe burns are also a big issue for

          6  workers who work in the demolition industry. Workers

          7  very often get burned when using the acetylene

          8  torches that they use to cut structural steel and

          9  other materials.

         10                 In order to burn steel you have to

         11  hold a certificate of fitness with the Fire

         12  Department, but from my experience and Mr. Bulger's

         13  experience, during the last two years of

         14  investigating this industry we have seen that

         15  approximately 80 percent of the men who were

         16  actually burning steel don't hold licenses from the

         17  Fire Department.

         18                 Workers have told us that it is

         19  common practice for these contractors to post the

         20  license of maybe one qualified burner, when in fact

         21  they have five other unlicensed workers actually

         22  using torches.

         23                 Workers reported to us that the Fire

         24  Department rarely comes to the job site to check the

         25  licenses of those workers who are actually burning
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          2  steel. We have been told that inspectors will come

          3  to a job and they may inspect usually on a shanty,

          4  they may post the licenses but they don't actually

          5  go up to a worker who is burning steel and ask him,

          6  can you produce a license for me. Let me see if your

          7  license matches the license that is actually

          8  downstairs on a shanty wall - they don't do it.

          9                 Intro. 96-A --

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Why not,

         11  in your opinion, don't they do it?

         12                 MR. BIANCO: Well, if you look at a

         13  building that is coming down, and you have to

         14  remember there is no power in the building other

         15  than what the contractors generate, no electrical

         16  power, other than what the machines are generating

         17  themselves.

         18                 It might be a question that the

         19  inspectors don't want to walk up scaffolding,

         20  because many times workers are on top floors,

         21  burning, and many times the supervisors, when they

         22  are on the job, and, again, this is an industry that

         23  for the most part is isolated from the rest of the

         24  construction process. We have been talking about the

         25  big GC jobs and stuff like that. But a lot of these
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          2  wreckers, a lot of the City's wreckers, when they

          3  are taking a structure down, it is just them, it is

          4  just them and their workers, and we found that

          5  workers are basically isolated, and they have told

          6  us, many of them obviously don't speak English, so I

          7  think there is a problem with communicating or the

          8  fear of communicating with inspectors, the fear of

          9  retribution from their employers.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Some of

         11  these people undocument their people?

         12                 MR. BIANCO: Yes, sure.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So they

         14  are afraid any dealing with the government might

         15  reveal they are undocumented.

         16                 MR. BIANCO: They don't know if an

         17  inspector is from INS or from --

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I

         19  understand. I am from Washington Heights.

         20                 MR. BIANCO: Exactly. Okay.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have

         22  had these operations there.

         23                 MR. BIANCO: All right.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, in

         25  other words, but they are not in your union, are
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          2  they?

          3                 MR. BIANCO: Yes, they are.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They are

          5  in the union.

          6                 MR. BIANCO: These are workers who are

          7  in the union, they are non-union workers --

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So

          9  whether they are documented or undocumented, you

         10  have undocumented people in your union, as well?

         11                 MR. BIANCO: I believe we do, sure. We

         12  are not immigration, we don't check to see. We

         13  represent all workers.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And you

         15  are right not to.

         16                 MR. BIANCO: Right. We don't ask them

         17  for residency, we just have to put a Social Security

         18  card in.

         19                 So the question of people doing

         20  licensed work who aren't licensed is a big issue in

         21  this industry.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What you

         23  are saying to us, to your knowledge, the Department

         24  doesn't go around and inspect to see who is

         25  licensed?
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          2                 MR. BIANCO: No.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And for

          4  what reason? It is just inconvenient or?

          5                 MR. BIANCO: Yes, probably

          6  inconvenience. Probably, you know, from what we

          7  hear, they just don't ask the questions. More times

          8  than not the inspectors --

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What

         10  could we put in this legislation that would make

         11  them do that?

         12                 MR. BIANCO: I would like to see --

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You

         14  obviously want licensed people doing the work?

         15                 MR. BIANCO: Of course. Especially

         16  when you are burning steel --

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: This is

         18  dangerous work.

         19                 MR. BIANCO: There is incidence of

         20  fires. It is very dangerous work.

         21                 I would like to see inspectors

         22  enforce the requisite that people who are burning

         23  have their license.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: For

         25  anyone, they are dealing with a bearing or

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            90

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  non-bearing wall, they have to know the difference.

          3                 MR. BIANCO: Correct.

          4                 I think Intro. 96-A is a good first

          5  step, getting back to my testimony, but in order to

          6  make a dent in the safety of these demolition

          7  workers, we need to train on the job supervisors in

          8  safety.

          9                 If you look at the industry again,

         10  from what we found out, the demolition companies who

         11  wrecked these buildings will hire supervisors. We

         12  have come across supervisors who will leave the job

         13  for a period of time during the day while there is

         14  demolition going on, so that the workers are

         15  basically unsupervised we have seen it. So that you

         16  are talking about undocumented workers, many times

         17  you are talking about the threat of an employer to

         18  fire a worker who is working in an unsafe condition.

         19  We have heard from workers that if they do complain

         20  about an unsafe situation, they are basically told,

         21  listen, you can go home right now and we will find

         22  somebody else.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Or worse

         24  than that, or we will report you to the INS.

         25                 MR. BIANCO: Well, that is always a
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          2  threat that is out there, of course.

          3                 MR. BULGER: Also, one of the things

          4  they hold over their head is, you make waves go find

          5  a job somewhere else, they cannot collect

          6  unemployment because --

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They are

          8  not protected.

          9                 MR. BIANCO: Right.

         10                 MR. BULGER: So if you want a job, you

         11  just keep your mouth shut and do what we are telling

         12  you to do.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay,

         14  anything else?

         15                 .

         16                 MR. BIANCO: One of the things that

         17  they have made a lot of reference to is a lot of

         18  publicity happens for the jobs here in Manhattan,

         19  but by and large, most of the total demolition in

         20  the City is in the outer boroughs, and there is no

         21  safety enforcement on those job sites in the outer

         22  boroughs. Nobody could care less. They are not

         23  working for a general contractor and I think that is

         24  -- my partner Joe mentioned that. Article 352,

         25  licensing of just general contractors and general
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          2  managers would not help the situation at all with

          3  the demolition contractors. I believe they should be

          4  licensed.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, I

          6  want to get to that, because I don't know if you

          7  were here when I was questioning the Commissioner,

          8  with respect to his statements and the fact that he

          9  believes, and I am paraphrasing, that they only have

         10  to license general contractors and construction

         11  managers and he is against licensing demolition

         12  contractors. Were you here when he was testifying on

         13  that?

         14                 MR. BIANCO: Yes, I was.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay. And

         16  I asked him why, and his answer was that, number

         17  one, that -- and the only reason I am saying this is

         18  because I want you to comment on it -- number one

         19  was that most of the time it is being done by

         20  contractors, general contracting and construction

         21  managers who hire these demolition people and they

         22  are not a separate entity.

         23                 Your testimony is very different, you

         24  are saying very often the demolition contractors are

         25  often by themselves.
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          2                 MR. BIANCO: I think it is just the

          3  opposite of what he said, as far as total --

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are

          5  fact gathering here. He is a bureaucrat and you are

          6  the guys who do the work. So we are interested. I am

          7  not making a judgment here --

          8                 MR. BIANCO: No, no.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But I

         10  want to know what you have to say with respect to

         11  that issue.

         12                 MR. BIANCO: Well, I would say by and

         13  large most of the demolition, and as far as total

         14  demolition, even interior demolition is done by the

         15  demolition company working directly for the owners,

         16  or the tenant.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Without

         18  even a general contractor or --

         19                 MR. BIANCO: Not even a general

         20  contractor.

         21                 MR. BULGER: There is not a real GC

         22  presence on the job site, okay? For the most part

         23  the GCs have said that they don't want to be

         24  involved in the wrecking of a building firsthand,

         25  they want the building owner to knock the building
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          2  down, and for the most part, when the building is

          3  down, there is a hole in the ground, call us and we

          4  will build you a building.

          5                 So, you have seen a lot of the GCs

          6  step back from being on site when the building is

          7  coming down. So that you have the building owner

          8  contracting the work out to a wrecker, and I am

          9  talking about a lot of instances, these are in the

         10  outer boroughs when a landlord just says wreck my

         11  building. There is no GC there.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is a

         13  fairly situation where you do do the work.

         14                 MR. BULGER: Okay.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The other

         16  issue is, in the bill we define demolition, in the

         17  Code rather, and what we need from you, what we are

         18  trying to get at is actually a definition of

         19  demolition that we can use, because I think we are

         20  hearing from the Commissioner that it is very

         21  difficult to distinguish between demolition and

         22  alteration. If something happens by reason of an

         23  alteration. And how would you define a demolition

         24  company, what they do? What definition would you put

         25  in there?
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          2                 MR. BIANCO: Well, we deal with the

          3  total demolition of a building, so --

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There are

          5  times when you are not demolishing an entire

          6  building.

          7                 MR. BIANCO: Right.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are

          9  doing some demolition on part of the building, and

         10  some people would interpret that as an alteration,

         11  some people would interpret that as a demolition;

         12  what would you interpret it as?

         13                 MR. BIANCO: Well, I would interpret

         14  it all as a demolition, if they are taking, if they

         15  are shortening a building. It is funny, I get all of

         16  the demolition permits that are handed out by the

         17  City of New York, the Building Department, I get a

         18  copy of them, it is one of the services I got from

         19  the Building Department. They only hand out

         20  demolition permits to, when the building is being

         21  taken totally down.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They

         23  don't hand them out when they do alterations, which

         24  you may consider in your expertise as being

         25  demolition?
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          2                 MR. BIANCO: Sure. I have seen a

          3  couple of buildings. I believe one of them was on

          4  43rd Street last year that they lowered it. They

          5  took several floors off the top and they lowered the

          6  level of the building.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And that

          8  was not considered demolition?

          9                 MR. BIANCO: It was a demolition

         10  permit that I saw for it.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They

         12  considered that an alteration, not requiring a

         13  demolition permit.

         14                 MR. BIANCO: Quite possibly. I don't

         15  know what they considered. They might have had to

         16  file for a different permit.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But in

         18  your opinion, that was demolition?

         19                 MR. BIANCO: Yes, of course it was.

         20                 The question of structural change to

         21  a building has to be taken into consideration. What

         22  we consider total demolition or wrecking --

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well,

         24  there is some that sure are total demolition. There

         25  is not question whether there is total demolition.
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          2  That we don't have a problem with. The question is

          3  when it is not a total demolition, how do we define

          4  that as to be a demolition alteration, because we

          5  are giving an escape clause here by saying, you

          6  know, we don't need a demolition license here or a

          7  permit because this is really an alteration. And as

          8  I understand it, they don't license people who do

          9  alterations or demolitions. So we are trying to

         10  define, we are trying to license people to do

         11  demolition.

         12                 We want to know whether that should

         13  include, it should probably include people -- we

         14  don't want to give them an out in saying, okay, that

         15  is demolition and this is alteration. We have to

         16  have a broad definition of the term demolition to

         17  include certain types of alterations. It probably

         18  should include all types of alterations, but we

         19  should certainly include certain types of

         20  alterations. And it may be that it has something to

         21  do with the structural change, which is the words

         22  you just gave.

         23                 MR. BIANCO: We could use also --

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You don't

         25  have to give us an answer right now. If you have
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          2  one, fine. If you don't, give some thought to it and

          3  let us know.

          4                 MR. BIANCO: Well, what I am thinking

          5  is, the prevailing wage does have wages for

          6  demolition, interior demolition, and if a contractor

          7  goes into a building and is doing what one might

          8  consider alteration but is in fact shutting out

          9  sheetrock partitions, even though it is not a

         10  structural change, it is considered demolition, and

         11  if it is on a prevailing job, he would have to get a

         12  demolition wage.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: A

         14  structural change is not the answer. It has got to

         15  be more than structural change.

         16                 It can be something less than a

         17  structural change.

         18                 MR. BIANCO: No, I am saying, even if

         19  I am going into an office floor and I am not doing

         20  any structural change but I am ripping out all of

         21  the sheetroc partitions that were put there by the

         22  prior tenant, the prevailing wage job that would be

         23  considered demolition and the people performing that

         24  work would have to be getting paid at the demolition

         25  prevailing wages.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: But you still

          3  would have to go to the Housing and Buildings

          4  Department to get a permit to do any kind of

          5  alterations for the building.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But the

          7  issue really here is, we have a bill to license

          8  demolition, because we know it is dangerous. Now,

          9  let me get back to that for a second.

         10                 What if you define it in the way of

         11  anything that creates construction debris?

         12                 MR. BIANCO: Well, the actual building

         13  of a new building creates construction debris.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, of

         15  old debris. Not new debris. I am not talking about

         16  earth. I am talking about -- I have worked

         17  previously in construction, and the reason I am

         18  thinking of that is because I am also the Chair of

         19  the Environmental Committee, and one of the things

         20  the City is attempting to include in recycling is

         21  construction debris, which is used to pave the

         22  streets in Freshkills, and it is just interesting to

         23  me, and I am just seeing any way we can to properly

         24  define it. Because structural is not enough. If you

         25  say they took sheetrock, maybe we just have to get
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          2  details as to what it concerns.

          3                 MR. BIANCO: Well, I can tell you from

          4  a union standpoint, we do have definitely clear

          5  guidelines what we consider demolition.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As

          7  opposed to alteration?

          8                 MR. BIANCO: Well, no, not opposed to

          9  alteration. I mean, alteration is demolition. Let's

         10  face it, whenever someone does an alteration job,

         11  they have to do demolition first. So, I mean --

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you

         13  think your position is that even alteration should

         14  be, it is all alteration to be considered

         15  demolition. You can't envision certain types of

         16  alteration which would not constitute demolition?

         17                 MR. BIANCO: If something has to be

         18  ripped out so that it can be altered or changed or

         19  something new put in its place, even if you are

         20  putting back the same exact thing, the process of

         21  ripping it out to alter it is demolition.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is not

         23  a situation where you don't have to rip anything

         24  out, you are adding something to it?

         25                 MR. BIANCO: Then it wouldn't be
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          2  demolition, no. If you are just adding something.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You could

          4  add something to something and it could result in

          5  alteration without having to demolish anything.

          6                 MR. BIANCO: Correct. But I am saying,

          7  if you need to rip something out to do this

          8  alteration, that ripping out, however small or

          9  whatever it is is demolition.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All

         11  right. Thank you very much. You have been very

         12  helpful. Is there anything else you want to say?

         13                 MR. BIANCO: No, that's it. Thank you.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Tracy

         15  Boyland, Council Member Tracy Boyland has a

         16  question.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I have two

         18  questions. Give me some feedback on your opinion on

         19  Intro. 352, and also on Intro. 96-A. The gentleman

         20  that just left made comments on the seven-year

         21  practical experience piece. Can you give me your

         22  opinion on how practical you think the seven-year

         23  experience piece is, and with the apprenticeship

         24  piece, is that really part of it?

         25                 MR. BULGER: The seven-year practical
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          2  experience, these companies, I mean I know people

          3  that are in the industry 20 years and still don't

          4  know what the hell they are doing. So just to have a

          5  guy there, and companies would do that, say, oh, he

          6  has been wrecking for seven years, ten years, 12

          7  years, just because he has got a lot of years in

          8  use, it doesn't mean he is really a competent safety

          9  person on the job. I don't really like that

         10  seven-year practical experience.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I say that

         12  because I visited some of the training facilities

         13  for the brick masons, for the painters, I visit the

         14  apprenticeship programs, and I think they give a lot

         15  of formal education in terms of what the job is, as

         16  well as unionize some of the members also. So, I

         17  wanted to know, in our bill, what your disputes are

         18  with that.

         19                 MR. BIANCO: Repeating what David

         20  said, selecting years of competency doesn't

         21  necessarily mean that these jobs are going to be

         22  done safe by the personnel.

         23                 What I would like to see is some sort

         24  of increased responsibility put on the supervisors

         25  who are actually running these jobs, it is vitally
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          2  important here. Because many times the owners of

          3  these companies assign these supervisors to do this

          4  work and the supervisors, in my opinion, are the

          5  ones who have in the past brutalized workers and

          6  intimidated workers, and run jobs basically very

          7  unsafe.

          8                 The employer, what the employer has

          9  said or may say to a supervisor --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: When you say

         11  unsafe, meaning? Define unsafe.

         12                 MR. BIANCO: Unsafe means there are

         13  laborers laying, workers laying in shanties

         14  bleeding, told don't go to the doctor because you

         15  need to be at work tomorrow, and if you go to a

         16  doctor and you file a workman's comp claim, you are

         17  going to be fired. So, you have got to remember, in

         18  this industry you have got a lot of getting hurt, so

         19  the workers comp issue is very big here for these

         20  employers. These employers are very afraid of their

         21  workers comp insurance going up so they discourage

         22  workers from making claims.

         23                 We have witnessed workers going to

         24  work bandaged up, limping, and we say you are hurt,

         25  what are you doing, you have to go to a doctor - no,
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          2  I can't or I will be fired. I need to be the bills,

          3  I will be fired.

          4                 So, I would like to see more

          5  legislation, more accountability put on the

          6  shoulders of the people who are actually on the job

          7  sites running these jobs.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: It is

          9  interesting.

         10                 MR. BULGER: I would like to see

         11  independent site safety people on these jobs, people

         12  that aren't necessarily working for the company for

         13  seven years.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: An oversight,

         15  sort of an oversight agency that comes in to make

         16  sure.

         17                 MR. BULGER: Yes. Because frankly I

         18  don't trust these companies to -- they could have

         19  all of the safety diplomas in the world but I don't

         20  trust them to enforce the safety.  Time is money.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: So you don't

         22  believe in them policing themselves?

         23                 MR. BULGER: No.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: If you are

         25  asking for an employer to police himself, he is
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          2  going to do what he feels is right, but it is our

          3  position that obviously that is not enough. If you

          4  look at the numbers and the number of workers

          5  getting hurt and killed, it is clearly not enough to

          6  let them regulate themselves.

          7                 MR. BULGER: And not necessarily just

          8  the horrible tragic accidents when someone loses

          9  their life, but the day in and day out, they don't

         10  have the proper respiratory equipment, the hard

         11  hats, just everything else they need so that they

         12  don't get hurt or have long-term damage. There is

         13  nobody watching that and nobody cares. And if a guy

         14  asks for a dust mask, they tell him, go home if you

         15  want a dust mask.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I apologize

         17  that I came over late, but getting back to the seven

         18  year practice and the apprentice program, is there

         19  some sort of formal certificate or something, or

         20  something that is given to show that the employees

         21  that are hired through the unions or for projects

         22  have now been formally trained on how to do their

         23  specific duties?

         24                 MR. BULGER: The union does, the Mason

         25  Tenders District Council Training Fund does offer
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          2  certificates in scaffold and burning from the Fire

          3  Department so we give them the prep course. So if

          4  the worker does get a certification, we do have that

          5  and we can present it to the employer. For the most

          6  part in the total demolition industry, like I said

          7  before, you have got a lot of workers who have not

          8  taken advantage of our training facilities, mainly

          9  because the employer wants to keep them away from

         10  the union. You have got many workers who the

         11  employers feel that if he or she found out what his

         12  rights were as it were that it would be a threat,

         13  balance of power change, so they discourage workers

         14  from coming to our training program and any other

         15  training programs that are available.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: And on

         17  particular sites there is some sort of clause saying

         18  there has to be a certain percentage of unionized

         19  workers there and that sort of addresses that issue,

         20  in terms of people coming in that aren't unionized.

         21                 MR. BULGER: Our collective bargaining

         22  agreement says that everyone working for a City

         23  contractor must join the union at some point, must

         24  be a union member, yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: This doesn't
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          2  answer the question though.

          3                 MR. BULGER: It doesn't mandate that a

          4  worker has to have X amount of years of experience

          5  in order to get on to a job site. It does not.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: What I am

          7  getting at, we won't have what the gentleman before

          8  you referred to as tragedies in Brooklyn that is

          9  underpublicized if we had construction people or

         10  workers that were experienced in what they were

         11  doing, therefore, going through an apprentice

         12  program, therefore being part of a union that

         13  specifies that they should go back and have a

         14  certain amount of training at a certain point in

         15  time in their career if they were 20 years on the

         16  job in the painters union or 20 years on the job on

         17  a mason site that they should have X Y or Z

         18  credentials before they got to that particular

         19  stage. Therefore it would alleviate the tragedies

         20  that we are talking about, not totally, but

         21  therefore there is some sort of accountability at

         22  some point in time.

         23                 MR. BIANCO: I would agree. I think

         24  that might be able to be addressed to a certain

         25  extent in the CBA, mandating an employer to only
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          2  give a worker a certain task if he has accumulated

          3  enough hours of working experience, because you can

          4  bargain that, at the present time in this industry

          5  --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: You do it on

          7  salary at some point.

          8                 MR. BIANCO: You do.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: If you have

         10  been with a particular job for a certain amount of

         11  years your salary will increase.

         12                 MR. BIANCO:  No, we do it by the task

         13  of work that you are performing. So, if you are a

         14  demolition worker and you are performing a

         15  particular task, that task is a certain wage rate.

         16  We go by years of experience but it is not accurate.

         17                 MR. BULGER: But for example, if you

         18  are burning on a demolition, you are supposed to be

         19  given top pay, and that is one of the reasons a lot

         20  of these contractors hide how many guys are actually

         21  burning. Because they don't want to give everybody

         22  burning top pay. They will tell one of their

         23  regulars who they are paying $14 an hour or $12 an

         24  your you are going to burn today. The guy is not

         25  going to say no, and he is not going to argue about
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          2  getting the top pay.

          3                 Often times these companies all have

          4  radios. A guy on the ground will tell everyone to

          5  stop burning upstairs if the Fire Department shows

          6  up to inspect a job, and it is that simple.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          8  Marshall.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         11  Marshall.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: People who

         13  come, immigrants and others, who maybe have less

         14  experience, I heard you say they pay according to

         15  the job you do, do those people get the same salary

         16  as people who have been around longer?

         17                 MR. BIANCO: Yes. If a worker who was

         18  hired on the first day was performing work next to a

         19  gentlemen who has been working in the industry for

         20  20 years and doing the same work, they have to

         21  receive the same pay.

         22                 MR. BULGER: Theoretically, but that

         23  is not what happens.

         24                 MR. BIANCO: That is not what happens.

         25  That is what our collective bargaining agreement

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            110

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  says, but that is not what happens in the industry.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, what

          4  really happens?

          5                 MR. BULGER: Well, without getting

          6  into the very long story of Local 95 and the

          7  collective bargaining agreement that we inherited,

          8  we did not negotiate it, there is no union

          9  enforcement really on any of the job sites. The

         10  company appoints, or the shop steward would be the

         11  one looking out for the union members on the job

         12  sites, has to be a company man, a guy who has been

         13  with the company for X amount of years, and the

         14  union does not have the right to put one of his own

         15  people in there, someone that I would trust, to

         16  watch out for the wages and safety, and like I said,

         17  it is a trade agreement that we inherited, previous

         18  management of 95 are all gone because of corruption,

         19  and obviously the trade agreement was one of the

         20  reasons.

         21                 So, like I said, without getting into

         22  a very long story, we would be happy to tell it to

         23  you some day, but it's a long story.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Because I

         25  find I represent a large immigrant community also,
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          2  in Queens, Corona, East Elmhurst and Jackson

          3  Heights, that most of the time these workers are

          4  exploited and paid far less money and they are glad

          5  to get it, and when they are compared to the

          6  salaries that they will be getting in their own

          7  country, it is great, you know. But on the other

          8  hand, they are really exploited something awful.

          9                 MR. BULGER: Well, again, going back

         10  to that trade agreement, the company is not required

         11  to take men from the union hall. They can get people

         12  off of the street.  And that is one of the things

         13  they do a lot on these total demo projects. They

         14  will take people from the community or people from

         15  the street, people who have absolutely no experience

         16  in demolition and tell them to go inside a building

         17  and start swinging hammers and sledgehammers and

         18  these people have no knowledge of safety or unionism

         19  or demolition, so they just do whatever they are

         20  told because they want a job.

         21                 A lot of them have never wrecked

         22  before in their lives and this is their first day on

         23  the job.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Technically

         25  they are supposed to get the same salary?
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          2                 MR. BIANCO: Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Do they?

          4                 MR. BIANCO: No. If you go and speak

          5  to the union you will be fired or you will be laid

          6  off. Sorry, they say laid off.

          7                 MR. BULGER: Most of the time they get

          8  paid cash. Sorry.

          9                 MR. BIANCO: The problem with the

         10  industry is that years ago I think you had a core of

         11  workers who were highly skilled in the art of

         12  dismantling a building, and I think over the years

         13  you have seen a deterioration or you have seen a

         14  lack of the passing down of those skills, and you

         15  can blame the union, you can blame the employer, you

         16  can blame both. What you currently have is a

         17  dangerous situation where there is just not enough

         18  old guys around, if I can use a phrase, the

         19  veterans, the guys who have the 20 years of

         20  wrecking.

         21                 What I am seeing now is pensioners

         22  come to me who have ingested 20 years of silica,

         23  lead, because they were cutting structural steel and

         24  they weren't taking the proper safety precautions.

         25  We all have heard the horror stories, and at this
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          2  point they are asking the union now, what can we do.

          3                 Dave and I have been in the industry

          4  for two years, we have been appointed to try to take

          5  the union from low level and reform it.

          6                 The companies have a minimal amount

          7  of safety, harnesses, dust masks, on the job. The

          8  supervisors who are on the job, they don't force the

          9  workers to wear safety equipment.

         10                 MR. BULGER: Again, the big high

         11  profile jobs in Manhattan for a reputable GC for the

         12  most part are run pretty well, it's the rest of the

         13  boroughs. It's a big city.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: That is

         15  where I am from, the outer boroughs.

         16                 MR. BULGER: Especially in Brooklyn.

         17  These buildings that are owned by HPD, they are just

         18  being demolished and there is no build out, all that

         19  is going to end there is an empty lot. There is no

         20  general contractor, and the demolition contractor

         21  goes in there, does whatever it wants, nobody goes

         22  there to check, just take the building down.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: But aren't

         24  all of those supervised by design and construction,

         25  which is New York City?
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          2                 MR. BULGER: I don't know if the HPD

          3  ones are supervised --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: HPD does

          5  have its own contractors, yes, that is true.

          6                 MR. BULGER: Yes, and they don't

          7  supervise anything, I can tell you that. As long as

          8  they get a price for the building to come down. As

          9  long as the building comes down they don't care how

         10  it is done. I shouldn't say that, they probably

         11  would argue with me that they do care, but from what

         12  I have seen in the last two years, it doesn't seem

         13  like anybody cares.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I am going

         15  to go and look at the building they are doing in my

         16  community right now. But they are not demolishing

         17  it.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Gentlemen, I

         20  want to thank you for your testimony. I am sorry I

         21  was out of the room for part of your testimony, but

         22  I will certainly be in touch to further this

         23  conversation.

         24                 MR. BULGER: Thank you.

         25                 MR. BIANCO: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Michael McGuire.

          3  Followed by James Bynum, Timothy Warrington and Paul

          4  Fernandes.

          5                 MR. McGUIRE: Good afternoon, Chairman

          6  Spigner and Committee members. My name is Michael

          7  McGuire, I am the political director of the Mason

          8  Tenders District Council of Greater New York and

          9  Long Island.

         10                 The Mason Tenders District Council is

         11  comprised of more than 13,000 members in six local

         12  unions of the Laborers International Union of North

         13  America. There of these locals are made up of

         14  laborers in the construction industry in New York

         15  City.

         16                 They are construction and general

         17  building laborers, Local 79, demolition workers,

         18  Local 95, who you just heard representatives from

         19  speak, and asbestos, lead and hazardous abatement

         20  laborers, Local 78. These three locals represent

         21  roughly 10,500 men and women working throughout the

         22  five boroughs as building construction laborers,

         23  mason tenders, demolition workers and asbestos and

         24  hazardous material abatement laborers.

         25                 I am not here today to advocate for
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          2  the licensing of all construction companies, nor am

          3  I here to support unnecessary bureaucratic intrusion

          4  into private industry.

          5                 But construction is a dangerous

          6  business. Everyone in this room knows it's a

          7  dangerous business, and every person working on a

          8  construction site knows it's a dangerous business.

          9                 However, it doesn't have to be a

         10  deadly business. Working from scaffolding is an

         11  every day part of the job for the men and women of

         12  the three New York City locals I have just

         13  mentioned, and demolition is done by thousands of

         14  members of Local 79 and 95 every day.

         15                 The fact that this work has become

         16  deadly business brings me before you today. The two

         17  bills to be considered, Intro. 98-A -- 96-A, I am

         18  sorry, which calls for the licensing of demolition

         19  contractors to ensure a proper level of skill and

         20  Intro. 98-A, which will require a certificate of

         21  fitness for scaffold users and erectors, are

         22  designed to save lives, and not just the lives of

         23  the workers, but also the lives and the well-being

         24  of the general public.

         25                 In a July 29th, 1999 expose, the New
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          2  York Daily News outlined the dangers of working in

          3  the demolition industry.

          4                 Daily News Reporter Tom Robins noted

          5  that 12 people have been fatally injured in

          6  demolition accidents in New York City since 1994,

          7  making demolition the single, most dangerous

          8  construction trade.

          9                 Some of the most recent of these

         10  fatal accidents include a worker that was crushed by

         11  a collapsing wall at the old Port Authority

         12  building, and a laborer who was buried when a trench

         13  he was working in on Greenwich Street was

         14  inadvertently backfilled.

         15                 In the case of the Port Authority,

         16  the worker was found under a slab of concrete that

         17  was six by ten feet and five inches thick. The

         18  demolition contractor, Eagle Dismantling Company,

         19  was cited by the Buildings Department for improper

         20  shoring of the wall.

         21                 In the Greenwich Street accident, the

         22  Medical Examiner's office determined the worker,

         23  Luis Gomez, was "definitely buried alive", after

         24  soil was found in his lungs. The accident occurred

         25  at 2:00 p.m., but Gomez' coworkers didn't realize he
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          2  was missing until quitting time.

          3                 They informed the contractor but

          4  received no help. The missing man's brother and

          5  coworkers returned to the site that evening and

          6  begin digging, finding his body at 10:00 p.m.

          7  Ironically, the contractor involved in this case was

          8  Safeway Construction of Brooklyn.

          9                 Last December 22nd, a four-story

         10  building undergoing demolition on Bainbridge Street

         11  in Brooklyn collapsed, seriously injuring three

         12  workers. More frighteningly, two parked cars on the

         13  street were crushed by falling debris.

         14                 Fifteen people who live in the

         15  adjacent building had to be relocated from their

         16  homes.

         17                 Also, last fall, a contractor

         18  renovating an occupied building on Flatbush Avenue

         19  removed a bearing beam, causing a partial collapse

         20  and leaving all of the building's residents

         21  homeless.

         22                 In January last year, the theater

         23  undergoing demolition in Jersey City collapsed

         24  leaving 18 members of the public injured when bricks

         25  and debris crashed through the roofs of the adjacent
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          2  stores.

          3                 The injuries including a

          4  four-year-old girl who suffered a fractured skull

          5  and a broken leg.

          6                 While this accident happened across

          7  the river, it is only a matter of time until a

          8  demolition accident occurs on our side of the river

          9  that injures or kills innocent passers-by.

         10                 In another incident, which occurred

         11  11 days before Christmas last year, Mariusz

         12  Skowronski, a member of Demolition Workers Local 95,

         13  which is part of the Mason Tenders District Council,

         14  was working for Big Apple Wrecking on Madison

         15  Avenue. He was operating a Bobcat, a type of small

         16  bulldozer that he was not trained to use. An

         17  accident occurred and his head was impaled by a

         18  pipe. The Medical Examiner estimated that he died

         19  within 30 seconds. Upon arrival at the job, with

         20  Mariusz Skowronski's body still sitting in the

         21  Bobcat, the owner of the company was quoted as

         22  saying, (and I hope you will forgive my language)

         23  "Look, shit happens. This is a highly dangerous

         24  business."

         25                 The reason I have cited these

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            120

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  examples today is to show you just how dire the need

          3  has become to ensure the demolition contractors have

          4  sufficient skills.

          5                 I believe the worst part of the

          6  problem is caused by the belief that anyone can tear

          7  down a building, scrape together a thousand dollars

          8  to buy some sledge hammers, shovels and a torch,

          9  hire some inexperienced, untrained workers and you

         10  are a demolition contractor.

         11                 Currently you don't have to know the

         12  difference between a framed wall and a load-bearing

         13  wall, between a joist and a load-bearing beam. A

         14  demolition contractor isn't even required to know

         15  how to read blueprints.

         16                 Intro. 96-A would require demolition

         17  contractors to have a licensed engineer, a licensed

         18  architect or someone with seven years practical

         19  experience on staff to guarantee the proper level of

         20  skill to tear a building down safely.

         21                 I couldn't agree more with the

         22  engineer or architect requirement, but I believe the

         23  seven-year rule doesn't go far enough.

         24                 As of September 15th of this year, I

         25  have been in the construction business for 19 years.
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          2  I have held jobs ranging from laborer, to foreman,

          3  to general foreman, to construction superintendent.

          4  I am certified by the Nationwide Association of

          5  General Contractors in blueprint and plan reading,

          6  and I can honestly say I cannot always readily

          7  identify a bearing wall, versus a non-bearing wall.

          8                 I urge the Committee to pass this

          9  bill, as it is an enormous step forward. I would,

         10  however, recommend that some sort of serious

         11  training for certification is inserted before the

         12  seven-year rule is used as an indicator to whether a

         13  demolition worker is as competent to judge site

         14  conditions as an architect or an engineer.

         15                 As for Intro. 98-A which would

         16  require a certificate of fitness for all persons

         17  working form or erecting scaffolding, this

         18  requirement is also sorely needed. I can do the same

         19  thing I just did with the demolition industry and go

         20  through dozens of fatal cases over the last few

         21  years, but I don't think that is necessary.

         22                 Instead I am going to focus on a

         23  two-month period this summer, from June 19th through

         24  August 24th. On June 19th, John Boone was working

         25  from a scaffold in an elevator shaft in a building
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          2  under construction on Seventh Avenue, on a

          3  renovation on Seventh Avenue, when a cable snapped,

          4  Boone fell ten stories to his death.

          5                 Two weeks later, on June 23rd, a

          6  worker dismantling a hanging scaffold on a building

          7  at 45 East 72nd Street fell 18 stories to his death.

          8  The contractor he was working for, Brend Corporation

          9  of Maspeth, Queens, did not have a permit to operate

         10  hanging scaffolds.

         11                 Fifteen days after the second

         12  incident, on July 8th, three workers were killed in

         13  falls on the same day. These fatalities including a

         14  window washer who fell 12 stories, a 65-year-old

         15  construction worker who fell 30 feet from a scaffold

         16  while doing masonry work at the New York Aquarium at

         17  Coney Island.

         18                 On August 14th there was again

         19  multiple accidents the same day.

         20                 Mia Rashid was working on the

         21  exterior of a building in Bay Ridge when he fell six

         22  stories from the scaffolding to his death. In an

         23  earlier incident that day, a construction worker

         24  fell two stories and was critically injured in

         25  Jamaica, Queens.
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          2                 Four days later, on August 18th,

          3  Marek Soltys was killed when the scaffold he was

          4  working from collapsed, sending him plummeting 18

          5  stories to the pavement, where he narrowly missed

          6  another worker using a jackhammer on the street

          7  below. Soltys left behind a wife and a young

          8  daughter.

          9                 Luckily, this particular string of

         10  accidents ends on a happy note. On August 24th,

         11  Roberto Hernandez and Jose Lopez, were working from

         12  a two-point suspended scaffold 150 feet above 108th

         13  Street and Amsterdam Avenue when one of the cables

         14  snapped.

         15                 Fortunately, both men were saved from

         16  certain death because they were wearing safety

         17  harnesses attached to life lines. They each dangled

         18  in midair for 20 minutes until rescue workers from

         19  the NYPD and Fire Department were able to safely

         20  bring them to the ground. The only harm being one of

         21  the workers suffered a minor injury.

         22                 A two-month period, seven workers

         23  with no safety equipment end up dead, two workers

         24  with safety equipment end up with one having a cut

         25  thumb. These are some pretty clear examples of the
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          2  need of a certificate of fitness ensuring proper

          3  safety training.

          4                 As most of these accidents occur due

          5  to equipment failure, they are also a strong

          6  indicator of the need for a certificate of fitness

          7  regarding the erection of scaffolding.

          8                 The latest data from the Bureau of

          9  Labor Statistics shows that overall work place

         10  fatalities dropped in 1998. As a matter of fact, the

         11  statistics showed the lowest number of workplace

         12  fatalities since the BLS began conducting its annual

         13  census of fatal occupational injuries in 1992.

         14                 However, fatalities in the

         15  construction industry rose, with construction

         16  accidents accounting for nearly one-fifth of all

         17  worksite fatalities in 1998.

         18                 This makes construction the most

         19  dangerous industry in the country in terms of fatal

         20  accidents.

         21                 The BLS study also tells us that in

         22  1998 worksite falls resulted in more than 700

         23  deaths. Falls from roofs and scaffolding are both

         24  the highest they have ever been in the seven-year

         25  history of the census.
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          2                 Formal training is the key to

          3  stopping the growth and ultimately reversing the

          4  trend of workers being killed in scaffolding

          5  accidents. Often practical experience is thought to

          6  be sufficient training, and in truth, many, many

          7  workers are quite experienced in scaffolding use and

          8  erection.

          9                 However, experience doesn't make up

         10  for a lack of formal training.

         11                 On March 12th, 1997, construction and

         12  general building member Local 79 member Dennis Cook

         13  was killed when a scaffolding, when a cable on the

         14  two-point suspended scaffolding he was working on

         15  gave way at a job site at 58th Street and Ninth

         16  Avenue.

         17                 Dennis fell five stories to the

         18  concrete surface of a roof setback. He was rushed to

         19  Roosevelt Hospital where he died several hours later

         20  from internal injuries. Dennis Cook was 34 years old

         21  at the time of his death. He leaves behind a wife

         22  and a two-year-old son, Dennis, Jr.

         23                 This accident occurred, even though

         24  Cook was well experienced at working on two-point

         25  suspended scaffolding and was in the employ of a
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          2  reputable contractor working on a project being

          3  built by one of the largest construction companies

          4  in the country.

          5                 With the greatly increased building

          6  inspection requirements passed by this Committee and

          7  the full City Council last year that were recently

          8  implemented, the use of scaffolding is going to

          9  increase greatly. In all likelihood, this means the

         10  number of accidents will also increase.

         11                 As it stand now, there is no

         12  requirement of the Administrative Code that

         13  obligates a person working on scaffolding to have

         14  any training whatsoever.

         15                 I come before you today as a person

         16  who is experienced in working on scaffolding.  I can

         17  state that proper erection and use of scaffolding is

         18  not as simple as it seems. Proper erection of

         19  scaffolding, even loading of materials and correct

         20  way to secure debris, tools and personnel are fairly

         21  tricky matters.

         22                 My colleague Timothy Warrington,

         23  instructor in General Scaffolding User Certification

         24  at the Mason Tenders Training Fund, will go into

         25  detail on these procedures in a few minutes.
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          2                 The Bureau of Labor Statistics tell

          3  us that construction is one of the most dangerous

          4  industries in the country. I am sure if I was to

          5  make the next part of my statement around the union

          6  hall it would not be a popular one, but we all know

          7  it to be true. If a person chooses to do dangerous

          8  work, he or she must assume some of the

          9  responsibilities involved in that danger.

         10                 However, in this case, we are not

         11  just talking about the person or persons on the

         12  scaffolding itself. These scaffolds are erected over

         13  City sidewalks, crowded with pedestrians going about

         14  their day's business. It is only a matter of time

         15  before an untrained, unqualified worker improperly

         16  erects or overloads a scaffold, and sends a

         17  scaffold, gets loaded materials and the work comes

         18  tumbling down onto the passers-by in the street

         19  below. Or worse yet, with all of the school repair

         20  work being done, down into a schoolyard full of

         21  children.

         22                 The regulation requiring sidewalk

         23  shed goes a long way to protecting pedestrians if

         24  contractors comply, which they do not always do, as

         25  the tragic death of 16-year-old school girl Yan Zhen
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          2  Zhao in January of last year shows.

          3                 However, even if a shed is in place,

          4  if dropped tools or debris hit a windowledge or

          5  other outcropping, they will most likely strike in

          6  the street or on the opposite sidewalk, not on top

          7  of the sidewalk shed.

          8                 No doubt there will be testimony from

          9  the Buildings Department, the Real Estate Board and

         10  others, which surprisingly there wasn't, that this

         11  will be a costly and burdensome requirement. You

         12  will probably hear, and justifiably so, that it

         13  would be difficult for the overworked staff of the

         14  Buildings Department and the BEST squad to police

         15  this requirement.

         16                 I am authorized to pledge that should

         17  this legislation pass, the 30 business agents and

         18  field representatives of the three New York City

         19  construction locals, and the related entities of the

         20  Mason Tenders District Council, will police this

         21  regulation during their daily business to job sites.

         22                 All of our business agents currently

         23  check for proper certification when they come across

         24  workers using oxy-acetylene torches for burning. If

         25  the worker isn't certified, or if the certified
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          2  person is not assigned to Fire Watch, the business

          3  agent reports the situation to the contractor's

          4  on-site superintendent. If the superintendent does

          5  not take action to correct the situation, the

          6  business agent then notifies the New York Fire

          7  Department.

          8                 Our business agents are prepared to

          9  undertake the same course of action in respect to

         10  the certificate of fitness for scaffold users.

         11                 As I said when I started, I am not

         12  here to advocate for the licensing of all

         13  construction companies, nor am I here to support

         14  unnecessary bureaucratic intrusion into private

         15  industry. However, licensing and certifications

         16  designed to protect both workers and the public at

         17  large are ensuring that workers and contractors have

         18  proper skills are not an unnecessary intrusion but

         19  rather a hallmark of good government.

         20                 I would like to close with the old

         21  adage that the best offense is a good defense. And

         22  the best defense against deadly construction

         23  accidents is stopping them before they happen by

         24  requiring trained and qualified workers and

         25  contractors.
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          2                 On behalf of the 13,000 members of

          3  the Mason Tenders District Council of Greater New

          4  York, I urge this Committee and the entire Council

          5  to pass intros 96-A and 98-A to ensure the safety of

          6  all New Yorkers.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you, Mr.

          8  McGuire.

          9                 MR. McGUIRE: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Who is next?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Can I just

         12  ask Mr. McGuire a question?

         13                 Did Mr. Cook have on a safety

         14  harness?

         15                 MR. McGUIRE: Mr. Cook did not have on

         16  a safety harness.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: And he was

         18  an experienced worker?

         19                 MR. McGUIRE: He was well experienced.

         20  He had several years of experience on suspended

         21  scaffolding.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Thank you.

         23                 MR. McGUIRE: I think without the

         24  certificate, a lot of people just don't even think

         25  about -- they know scaffolding, they are comfortable
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          2  on scaffolding, but they don't think about the

          3  safety requirements, and we believe the certificate

          4  of fitness would make them think about it before

          5  they step out onto the scaffold.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Like a safety

          7  belt.

          8                 MR. McGUIRE: The harness is on a life

          9  line.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Who is next?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Archie, let

         12  me ask another question.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Will you

         14  identify yourself, sir.

         15                 MR. BYNUM: My name is James Bynum, I

         16  am a business agent with the laborers Local 79.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You wanted to

         18  ask something?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I want to

         20  ask, can you expound on, you said the seven-year

         21  rule as before, is background experience; what are

         22  your recommendations in terms of that?

         23                 MR. McGUIRE: Off the top of my head I

         24  really can't come up with anything I would -- a

         25  comprehensive plan. However, Jim here will talk
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          2  about it in a few minutes.

          3                 Right now some of the things we offer

          4  at the Mason Tenders Training Fund is blueprint

          5  reading and plan reading, certificates, fitness

          6  preparedness for torch use for Fire Guard,

          7  certificates of scaffold users, scaffold erection.

          8  Various things.

          9                 We would certainly be able to expand

         10  our curriculum should this legislation pass to make

         11  sure that we will be able to offer classes to be

         12  able to provide qualified personnel to the

         13  contractors.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you.

         15                 MR. BYNUM: My name is James Bynum,

         16  and I was a laborer for the construction and general

         17  buildings laborers, Local 79, LIUNA for seven years

         18  and for the last three years I have been a Business

         19  Agent for Local 79.

         20                 Local 79 has more than 8,000 members

         21  that work throughout New York City. I am here to

         22  testify in support of Intro. 98-A requiring a

         23  certificate of fitness for scaffolding.

         24                 Every day I am out in the field

         25  hitting on average eight job sites a day. Although
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          2  the Mason Tenders' District Council offers a course

          3  on scaffolding use to all members, the District

          4  Council cannot require journeymen to take this

          5  training.

          6                 The result is that workers do not

          7  understand the safety precautions they need to take

          8  in order to avoid falls. I see workers all the time

          9  who are not wearing harnesses, scaffolds with no toe

         10  boards, no midrails or orange netting. Companies are

         11  required to use all these supplies yet most don't.

         12  OSHA won't investigate them unless there is an

         13  accident.

         14                 I have been the unfortunate witness

         15  of many preventable accidents. One such accident was

         16  in 1996, I watched a man fall four stories and

         17  receive serious life injuries when the planks

         18  snapped. He hasn't worked since. If he was wearing a

         19  harness, he would still be working today.

         20                 Requiring a certificate of fitness

         21  for scaffolding use is one step New York City can

         22  take in order to save the lives of many workers. The

         23  training that would be required is very basic, fall

         24  protection, assessing the structural integrity of

         25  the scaffold; and ensuring that construction debris
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          2  does not fall out of the work area.

          3                 These classes would be open to all

          4  workers, union workers at the training funds and

          5  non-union workers at private trade schools, and

          6  would begin to provide safer conditions on job

          7  sites, not only for the workers but for every New

          8  Yorker who has to walk near a construction site.

          9                 I urge this Committee to consider

         10  Intro. 98-A. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you, sir.

         12                 Next, please.

         13                 MR. WARRINGTON: Good afternoon. My

         14  name is Timothy Warrington, and I am an instructor

         15  at the Mason Tenders' District Council Training

         16  Fund, located at 75 Varick Street. The Mason

         17  Tenders' District Council Training Fund is a

         18  facility that provides training not only for the

         19  13,000 members of the Mason Tenders' District

         20  Council, but also for our signatory contractors and

         21  their non-union staff members.

         22                 The courses taught at the Training

         23  Fund range from an OSHA ten-hour safety course, to

         24  asbestos and lead abatement training, to English as

         25  a second language, to preparation for a GED high
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          2  school diploma.

          3                 Classes are taught in English,

          4  Spanish and Polish. Over the course of an average

          5  year, 6,440 trainees go through at least one of the

          6  more than 58 classes that are offered on a continuum

          7  basis.

          8                 I am here today to explain the

          9  training programs that are currently available and

         10  those that could be created to comply with Intros

         11  96-A and 98-A so they would be implemented.

         12                 The training fund currently offers

         13  three courses in scaffold use. Two-point Suspended

         14  Scaffold, Principles of Sidewalk Sheds, and General

         15  Scaffold User Certification.

         16                 Two-point suspended scaffold is an

         17  eight-hour class, that includes the use of personal

         18  fall arrest systems, which are the types of safety

         19  harnesses and lifelines that saved the lives of the

         20  two workers on 108th Street and Amsterdam Avenue, in

         21  August, that Mike McGuire just spoke about.

         22                 Also, taught in two-point suspended

         23  scaffold class are procedures for properly erecting

         24  these dangerous scaffolds for safe loading of

         25  materials and tools, and awareness of electrical
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          2  hazards and proper weight distribution. These topics

          3  protect not only the worker but also the general

          4  public on the streets below.

          5                 Principles of Sidewalk Sheds covers

          6  another extremely important type of scaffolding.

          7  Sidewalk sheds are the structures you see all over

          8  the City, directly in front of buildings that are

          9  undergoing inspection, renovation or restoration

         10  work that requires scaffolding on the building's

         11  exterior. Sidewalk sheds are also erected to protect

         12  the public from falling debris from buildings in a

         13  state of disrepair. The sidewalk shed has no real

         14  use in the construction process, it is there for the

         15  sole purpose of protecting the public.

         16                 This eight-hour class teaches safe

         17  erection, dismantling and maintenance of sidewalk

         18  sheds. Low-bearing capacity of sheds and proper

         19  compliance with all pertinent New York City

         20  Administrative and Building Code regulations, New

         21  York State regulations and federal OSHA standards.

         22                 The third scaffold class offered by

         23  the Mason Tenders' District Council Training Fund is

         24  a General Scaffold Use Certification Class. This

         25  class is also eight hours, focuses mainly on the
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          2  erection, dismantling and maintenance of the two

          3  most common types of scaffolding used in New York

          4  City, frame and brace and tube and clamp

          5  scaffolding, and also touches on four other type of

          6  scaffolding that are used to a lesser degree in New

          7  York. This course also provides training in safe

          8  loading, fall protection and overall scaffolding

          9  safety awareness.

         10                 As for Intro. 96-A, the licensing of

         11  demolition contractors, there are several current

         12  courses that will help demolition contractors'

         13  employees comply with the seven-year rule. The

         14  Training Fund offers a 40 hour course in blueprint

         15  reading, ten hour certification in OSHA construction

         16  safety standards, preparedness for certificate of

         17  fitness in torch use, oxy-acetylene, combined gas

         18  and Fire Guard for torch operations, among others.

         19                 Mason Tenders' District Council

         20  Training Fund is more than willing to expand its

         21  curriculum to comply with any other requirements put

         22  in place, should Intros 96-A and 98-A pass.

         23                 Additionally, I am sure that the

         24  numerous private trade schools throughout the City

         25  will rapidly set up classes so that any worker so
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          2  inclined can also become certified in these

          3  requirements.

          4                 It has been my experience that many

          5  private trade schools can and will set up training

          6  programs faster than we can ourselves.

          7                 To cite one instance, with the new

          8  federally mandated EPA lead abatement class, some

          9  trade schools receive their certifications several

         10  months before we receive our certification.

         11                 The business manager of our lead

         12  abatement local, Asbestos, Lead and Hazardous Waste

         13  Laborers' Local 78, even went so far as attending a

         14  private trade school to obtain the EPA

         15  certification.

         16                 It is my understanding that one of

         17  the reasons this bill was opposed in the past was

         18  the belief that it would lead to decreased

         19  employment opportunities for people of color. We, at

         20  the Mason Tenders' District Council would argue with

         21  that fact.

         22                 Our two New York City construction

         23  locals dealing in demolition both have memberships

         24  that are more than 50 percent minority. At the Mason

         25  Tenders' District Council Training Fund, our
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          2  apprenticeship classes have been -- and this is a

          3  misprint, it is 80 percent -- 80 percent minority

          4  since the inception of the program, and attendance

          5  at the General Scaffold User Certification class is

          6  56 percent minority, that is within the last 13

          7  months.

          8                 This combined with the opportunities

          9  provided by the private trade schools should lay

         10  these worries to rest.

         11                 In closing, I would like to speak

         12  about our trainees that range from a laborer with

         13  one week in construction to project managers. None

         14  of who leave our classes without gaining valuable

         15  knowledge. I personally am very proud when speaking

         16  to our scaffold and masonry contractors after they

         17  have taken our training because they then realize

         18  how vital the instruction is, not only to the

         19  laborer, but also to the industry. These individuals

         20  realize that training provides instruction that

         21  saves lives and helps prevent injuries increases

         22  productivity and keep the contractor from having to

         23  deal with the emotional conflict of having someone

         24  injured or die on the job.

         25                 Lastly, I would gladly invite Council
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          2  members to visit our facility and experience

          3  firsthand the excellent and much needed training

          4  that the Mason Tenders' Training Fund is providing.

          5  This awareness is not a luxury but a necessity that

          6  must not be overlooked.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. McGuire, Mr.

          9  Bynum and Mr. Warrington, if you gentlemen can

         10  provide the Committee with some statistics on

         11  accidents, that would be helpful to us. I know you

         12  do cite it in the testimony, but if you have any

         13  more specific list.

         14                 MR. McGUIRE: Currently I don't have

         15  any with me, but I can certainly supply them.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Sidewalk sheds

         17  as well.

         18                 MR. McGUIRE: We have related work

         19  site safety hearings that are going to be chaired by

         20  Cathy Nuldwin (phonetic) on a state level, and I

         21  currently have Labor Research Associates, Greg

         22  Tarpinian's outfit, doing research on these kinds of

         23  accidents for us, and as soon as we have those

         24  statistics and everything else, aside from the ones

         25  I cited here from the Bureau of Labor Statistics, I
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          2  will turn those over as soon as possible, and when I

          3  get the information from Mr. Tarpinian, I will

          4  certainly turn that over to the Committee as well.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And we will be

          6  happy to receive it.

          7                 You heard the Commissioner testify,

          8  as few if any accidents are directly connected,

          9  other than a motor vehicle hitting a sidewalk shed,

         10  that sort of counters the testimony that you give.

         11                 MR. McGUIRE: Well, directly to

         12  sidewalk sheds, I would imagine it probably is the

         13  case that there are certainly a lot more hanging and

         14  high up scaffold accidents than sidewalk sheds.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Certainly. Yes,

         16  there is no doubt about it.

         17                 MR. McGUIRE: But I think it would be

         18  kind of foolhardy to eliminate the sidewalk shed

         19  requirement from the rest of the legislation. It

         20  would be an integral part of the training and it

         21  wouldn't really add that much difficulty to the

         22  training to include it, so why take the chance that

         23  just because there are not very many sidewalk shed

         24  accidents, when you can include it in the training

         25  without much difficulty, why take the chance at
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          2  risking the lives of New Yorkers.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Again, Mr.

          4  McGuire and Mr. Warrington and Mr. Bynum, thank you

          5  very much for your testimony. We will be in touch

          6  with you.

          7                 The last witness to testify is Mr.

          8  Paul Fernandez.

          9                 Will you begin, sir. Identify

         10  yourself.

         11                 MR. FERNANDES: Good afternoon, Mr.

         12  Chairman and members of the Committee. My name is

         13  Paul Fernandes, I am Assistant to the President of

         14  the Building and Construction Trades Council of

         15  Greater New York. Our organization consists of 60

         16  affiliated unions representing more than 100,000

         17  working men and women in our industry in the five

         18  boroughs, and we are pleased to speak today on

         19  behalf or support of proposed introductions 96-A and

         20  98-A, regarding safety in two critical areas in the

         21  construction industry.

         22                 With the strong construction economy

         23  of the past two years, significant opportunities

         24  have been created for our members, much of the work

         25  that you see on the street today is being
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          2  fast-tracked in recognition that if timely advantage

          3  is not taken of favorable market conditions and

          4  lending rates, an overnight turn for the worse could

          5  prevent these projects from ever becoming a reality.

          6                 An unintended consequence of this

          7  situation, however, is that with full employment in

          8  the unionized sector of the industry for the first

          9  time in nearly a decade, a lack of skilled crafts

         10  persons is often evident. The result is an

         11  increasing reliance on untrained and unskilled

         12  workers on construction projects in New York City.

         13                 Putting aside for the moment the

         14  questionable business logic of proceeding on

         15  multi-million dollar investments with untrained and

         16  unskilled workers that often contribute to

         17  productivity and quality deficiencies, the more

         18  immediate problem is that such activity is putting

         19  the safety of workers on these projects and the

         20  surrounding public at risk.

         21                 Proposed Introduction 96-A is

         22  important because the demolition side of our

         23  industry is perhaps the most vulnerable to these

         24  problems, and in particular, when the Buildings

         25  Commissioner spoke of Introduction 352-A, and
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          2  mentioned that licensing general contractor would

          3  solve these problems, I wonder what industry he is

          4  looking at.

          5                 Demolition contracts for the most

          6  part, particularly in the renovation of existing

          7  structures, as opposed to the complete demolition of

          8  structures, are generally in the last few years at

          9  least, entered into directly by real estate owners

         10  with the demolition contractor as opposed to having

         11  a general contractor or construction manager award

         12  the demolition contract as a subcontract.

         13                 That means general contractors in

         14  many cases have nothing to do with the demolition

         15  phase of a project.

         16                 There are often projects that will be

         17  in the later phases when plumbing, electrical work,

         18  finishing trays are on board, completely unionized,

         19  outstanding safety protocols, both through adherence

         20  to regulations and laws as well as internal industry

         21  protocols, while that same project for the first

         22  three months could have been one of the most

         23  disgraceful construction projects in the entire

         24  City. Workers that are in many cases recent

         25  immigrants who are being exploited, being paid low
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          2  wages, have never gone through an hour, much less

          3  three or four years of safety training, and we have

          4  been fortunate that accidents haven't occurred with

          5  the frequency that this responsibility would lead

          6  you to believe would be occurring. In some cases

          7  that is probably a function of what some of the

          8  previous speakers talked about, which is workers

          9  fearing that if they do record injuries or they

         10  complain to management that safety protocols are not

         11  being adhered to, that they will not have a job the

         12  next day.

         13                 It is not uncommon for a totally

         14  inept demolition contractor with few, if any,

         15  credentials to be working on projects and we believe

         16  that it is imperative that this problem receive the

         17  scrutiny from this Committee that it deserves, and

         18  we look forward to working with you develop a sound

         19  industry standard that will ensure construction

         20  during the demolition phase is safe and responsible

         21  during the first days of the project and it is

         22  during the final days.

         23                 And I know Councilman Michels was

         24  here earlier, I assume he has left now, this problem

         25  is particularly relevant -- he is very familiar with
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          2  the toxic school in Northern Manhattan that was

          3  built under the School Leasing Program, if you look

          4  at the contractors, and there is often demolition

          5  work involved in the School Leasing Program because

          6  unlike most school construction projects, they are

          7  being undertaken through private landlords. I think

          8  it would serve this Committee well to look at that

          9  program in particular as an example of a public

         10  works construction project, in which the use of

         11  private landlords is being deliberately utilized to

         12  avoid compliance with public bidding requirements,

         13  prevailing wage requirements, and if you look at the

         14  projects that we looked at, there are contractors

         15  and workers doing this work where children will

         16  ultimately occupy these facilities, and nobody has

         17  ever heard of them.

         18                 And I think it would serve this

         19  Committee well to look at that particular program

         20  because there is about $200 million or $300 million

         21  in the Board of Ed's current five-year capital plan,

         22  specifically devoted to the leasing program.

         23                 Speaking of proposed Introduction

         24  98-A, it is apparent in our experience that

         25  scaffolding work, because it occurs at the outset of
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          2  a project, particularly the sidewalk shed, often

          3  suffers from problems similar to those experienced

          4  in the demolition phase.

          5                 As of today there are no requirements

          6  whatsoever for individuals involved in the erection

          7  of scaffolding and sidewalk sheds to receive any

          8  training or demonstrate any proficiency in their

          9  work. That is an accident waiting to happen and we

         10  urge this Committee and Council to rectify it

         11  quickly.

         12                 The Committee and Council should

         13  also, in implementing training and competency

         14  requirements for scaffolding work be careful to

         15  assure that only participation in bonafide training

         16  programs approved by the New York State Department

         17  of Labor will be recognized.

         18                 Everyone who spoke from our

         19  affiliated unions earlier today participates in

         20  those programs. Just because you say you have a

         21  training program, doesn't mean you really have one.

         22                 If this Department of Labor does not

         23  recognize it as such, members of our industry, both

         24  in labor and management, do not recognize it as

         25  being legitimate. In many cases they are not
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          2  entitled to certain legal benefits, such as the

          3  ability to pay workers less than the prevailing

          4  wages for apprentices, and we would just caution

          5  against allowing phony or unmonitored programs run

          6  by contractors more interested in demonstrating

          7  compliance with the wording of regulation and the

          8  actual intent of promoting genuine safety from being

          9  implemented.

         10                 The current state of our industry

         11  affords enormous opportunities to create jobs,

         12  economic growth and neighborhood renewal. But it

         13  also as we have outlined contained significant risks

         14  due to the full employment situation with skilled

         15  tradesmen.

         16                 We urge the Council and the Committee

         17  to give these issues their full attention, and we

         18  are pleased to see, number one, the attendance of

         19  the members at this committee, and the diligence

         20  with which they have listened to everyone's

         21  testimony and offered questions. We look forward to

         22  working with you to assure that there are industry

         23  standards that assure the responsibility of all

         24  construction projects so that only safe and

         25  qualified contractors that hire trained and skilled
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          2  workers are allowed to perform work in the industry.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Fernandez.

          6                 I want to extend appreciation to you

          7  and your colleagues and to also Mr. Malloy, your

          8  president, for your testimony today.

          9                 As we go forth with this concern in

         10  these issues, we will certainly avail ourselves of

         11  your extensive experience and knowledge in these

         12  areas.

         13                 MR. FERNANDES: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Councilwoman

         15  Marshall.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I will be

         17  brief.

         18                 I have been impressed at the training

         19  that the industry itself has maintained and

         20  generates in their offering to share that with the

         21  public.

         22                 Do you know of any high schools or

         23  college training for the building industries?

         24                 MR. FERNANDES: There was a

         25  partnership entered into between our industry and
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          2  the vocational high schools in, I guess it was

          3  signed into agreement in 1992 and implemented in '93

          4  where our programs go into the vocational high

          5  schools and try to work with both students and

          6  educators, number one, to try to get them to make

          7  their curriculum relevant to the modern construction

          8  work place, as well as trying to apprise the

          9  students of a wide array of trades that are

         10  available to them in the industry.

         11                 Most of the kids are familiar with

         12  carpentry, electrical work, plumbing. Many of them

         13  don't understand that an operating engineer who runs

         14  a crane is also a member of the union construction

         15  workforce. They don't know elevator construction is

         16  a career that is available to them.

         17                 And incidentally, all of these trades

         18  are apprenticeable, they have training programs,

         19  generally three to five years in duration.

         20                 So, we have made efforts to work with

         21  the public education community to try to make a

         22  better effort at apprising students, as well as

         23  educators, of what qualifications they need to

         24  become part of our industry. That doesn't just serve

         25  them well in terms of giving them access to careers
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          2  in our industry. It serves us well because we get a

          3  better qualified person at the outset of our

          4  program.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, I am

          6  interested in that training. I am chair of the

          7  Higher Education Committee, but certainly it seems

          8  to me that we have here a good possibility of a

          9  career ladder for young people going into the

         10  construction industry. Especially since your full

         11  employment among those with experience.

         12                 MR. FERNANDES: No, in fact our

         13  apprenticeship programs are probably taking more

         14  people in today to meet that demand for labor than

         15  they have at any time in the last decade.

         16                 And if you look at the, I think this

         17  is important because it points to the commitment

         18  that our employers, as well as our unions make the

         19  training.

         20                 In the City of New York there are

         21  approximately 7,800 construction trades apprentices

         22  in New York, City. 5,600 to 5,800 of those are in

         23  the unionized sector.

         24                 If you look at minority

         25  participation, 51 percent of the minorities in all
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          2  of our -- of the apprentices in all of our programs

          3  are from minority backgrounds.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: What

          5  percent?

          6                 MR. FERNANDES: Fifty-one percent.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Does that

          8  include women as well?

          9                 MR. FERNANDES: Women is included in

         10  that number, it is basically non-white male. People

         11  that are not white males. And as I am sure you are

         12  aware, we have had more difficulty in diversifying

         13  our membership in terms of female participation than

         14  we have in terms of brining minorities into the

         15  fold.

         16                 The reason I raise those figures is

         17  because if you look at the non-unionized sector, not

         18  only do they provide about one-fourth of the

         19  training that we do, but the minority participation

         20  rate, which is often assumed to be higher is

         21  actually 21 percent lower, and we actually have four

         22  times more minority apprentices than they do

         23  minority apprentices, which is often I think, quite

         24  frankly, I think people ignore the reality, I think

         25  they are looking at the way we were in 1969 or '79
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          2  and not the way we are in 1999. So, we have a

          3  significant commitment to training, and we will be

          4  very interested in speaking with you about providing

          5  more opportunities.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: In my other

          7  life, I worked for the City of New York Department

          8  of Employment and trying to get minorities into the

          9  industry was like impossible.

         10                 MR. FERNANDES: Well, that's true. If

         11  you go back into the seventies, I mean if you look

         12  at the progress of the industry. If you start in

         13  1970 or the late sixties when the first efforts at

         14  equal employment opportunity really began in earnest

         15  in the industry, there were probably participation

         16  rates in the single digits for minorities and women.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That's right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: That's true.

         19                 MR. FERNANDES: And if you look at the

         20  overall participation of minorities in, under

         21  skilled trades, I can't speak for anyone except for

         22  the people that are in the unionized sector of our

         23  industry, about 35 percent of all of the workforce

         24  today is composed of minorities.

         25                 The in-coming members, which really
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          2  represent the way you can get higher numbers, that

          3  is the 51 percent figure. We estimate that within a

          4  decade, based on current retention rates --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And population

          6  trends.

          7                 MR. FERNANDES: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The demographics

          9  for the City of New York are changing.

         10                 MR. FERNANDES: Yes, exactly.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And in the

         12  suburbs as well.

         13                 MR. FERNANDES: A century ago, the

         14  people that were new immigrants and the people that

         15  were interested in construction careers were Irish,

         16  Italian and German immigrants.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: They are all on

         18  Wall Street now.

         19                 MR. FERNANDES: Yes, they are most of

         20  our sons and daughters.

         21                 Today the new immigrants, this is a

         22  great industry to gain access to middle class

         23  careers, and we welcome the new immigrants.

         24                 I think Local 79, which has given

         25  testimony here today, has done an outstanding job of
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          2  including not just people of color who are

          3  minorities, but also new immigrants, as they

          4  mentioned, from Eastern Europe, and their ranks.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Fernandes. Give our best to Mr. Malloy.

          8                 MR. FERNANDES: I will.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We will be in

         10  touch.

         11                 MR. FERNANDES: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: There being no

         13  other witnesses, this meeting is adjourned.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 1:07 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 24th day of September 1999.

         20
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         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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